
“Wait a minute, wait  
a minute. You ain’t 
heard nothing yet!”
Al Jolson, The Jazz Singer
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film
“No form of art  
goes beyond ordinary 
consciousness as  
film does, straight  
to our emotions,  
deep into the twilight 
of the soul.”
Ingmar Bergman

gamestelevision gamestelevisiongames
Mary Delahunty MP
Minister for the Arts
Parliament House
Melbourne VIC 3000

Dear Minister,

I am pleased to present the 2004-2005 
Annual Report of the Australian Centre for 
the Moving Image. Copies of the report will 
be submitted for tabling in each House of 
Parliament in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management 
Act 1994.

Yours faithfully.

Dr Terry Cutler
President
October 2005
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“ I like a film to have  
a beginning, a middle 
and an end, but not 
necessarily in that 
order.”
Jean Luc-Godard 
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President’s Report
It is always pleasing to be able to report that 
we finish a year in much better shape than 
we started. In last year’s annual review I 
noted that the Board would be addressing 
three priorities in 2004 and 2005, namely:

• to consolidate ACMI’s operations and 
programs on a sustainable basis;

• to strengthen ACMI’s management; and
• to build the foundations for growth and 

new initiatives.

This year’s financial statements show we 
operated on an even keel, even though the 
official format for reporting depreciation can 
make it hard to gain a clear reading of actual 
operating results. Accordingly, we have 
again provided an explanatory overview of 
ACMI’s underlying actual performance  
(see page 11). 

Our new Director, Mr Tony Sweeney, took  
up duty just before Christmas. Since then he 
has worked assiduously to develop the 
masterplan to take us forward, and to put  
in place the management team to deliver an 
exciting suite of refreshed offerings for our 
public. We are confident that this forward 
program will excite Victorians and visitors  
to Melbourne alike. Implementing our 
blueprint for the future will not be without 
significant challenges, but the Board and 
management strongly believe we have clear 
and sound bearings for the next phase of 
the ACMI story.

The role of a Board in institutions like ACMI 
is seldom heralded. I would, therefore, like to 
pay special tribute to my Board colleagues 
for their indefatigable efforts on behalf of the 
organisation. This contribution becomes 
especially important in periods of change 
and transition. Only in this sector of 
government, however, are Board members 
asked to take on accountability for 
institutions and assume responsibility for 
their due governance entirely on an honorary 

basis. I continue to believe that this and 
related matters could be usefully reviewed, 
particularly in the context of the Uhrig review 
of the status of statutory bodies conducted 
for the Federal Government. 

This year particular acknowledgement must 
go to Ms Tracey Ellery who has decided to 
step down from the Board at the conclusion 
of her term. Tracey chaired our special ad 
hoc Budget Committee at a time when great 
effort was needed to consolidate the 
organisation on a sustainable basis, and our 
present confidence is due in no small part to 
the efforts of Tracey and Stephen Found on 
this committee. 

Finally, the Board welcomes the confidence 
the Government has shown in the work of 
the organisation, and appreciates its 
concrete support for the implementation of 
the first stages of our masterplan for moving 
forward. This gives me considerable 
satisfaction as I complete my current term  
of office. 

Dr Terry Cutler
President

media artart
“For reasons that mystify the 
Melbourne movie buff, not all 
international films find 
distribution in Australia and 
this means a lot of excellent 
world cinema goes unseen. But 
the folk at ACMI have decided  
to do something about it.”
The Age, 8 April 2005
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From left to right (top row):
Board members Tony Phillips,  
Alan Finney OAM, Natalie Miller OAM 
Dion Appel, Dan Pearce
President Terry Cutler

From left to right (top row):
Board members Annette Blonski,  
Stephen Found, Carolyn Kirby,  
Peter Doughty, Tracey Ellery (absent)
Director Tony Sweeney

“All right, Mr DeMille, 
I’m ready for my 
closeup.”
Norma Desmond (Gloria Swanson) 
Sunset Boulevard



Director’s Report
In an age increasingly driven by an economy 
of ideas and images, the moving image is 
not just an unavoidable part of our media-
saturated lives; it is central to how we 
understand the world and our place in it. 
More than any other form, screen culture 
defines who we are, what we do and how 
we imagine our future.

Internationally, the reputation that ACMI has 
developed since opening is very strong. 
State-of-the-art and future-focussed, ACMI 
has become known as one of the world’s 
premier engines for the investigation and 
celebration of the moving image in all its 
forms. Given Victoria’s strong position as a 
world-class centre for creative industries, it is 
little wonder that film and multimedia figure 
so large in the state’s cultural landscape. In 
creating the Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image, Victoria has strengthened its position 
at the forefront of creativity and innovation.

In its third year of operation at Federation 
Square, ACMI enhanced the quality, diversity 
and appeal of its programs, and continued 
to build a passionate community of interest 
around its activities. During 2004-2005, 
ACMI:

• Presented four significant international 
exhibitions of contemporary media arts, 
featuring almost 100 artists from more 
than a dozen countries around the world.

• Screened more than 1500 films at ACMI 
Cinemas, including new weekly programs 
of Great Australian Cinema and Late Night 
Cult, plus ACMI curated thematic 
programs such as Focus on Superheroes, 
Focus on Robert de Niro, Focus on Wong 
Kar-Wai and Focus on Female Gothic.

• Opened Games Lab, the first dedicated 
exhibition space examining the most 
rapidly developing moving image 
phenomenon of our time in a cultural 

context, which is quickly becoming a  
new hub for Victoria’s thriving game 
development community.

• Delivered more than 300 unique screen 
education programs reaching some 
20,000 students, including in-depth and 
hands-on youth workshops fostering the 
next generation of movie makers.

• Launched Australia’s first national moving 
image competition, Screen It!, for primary 
school students, attracting entries from as 
far a field as the Kimberley, Western 
Australia and Sandy Bay, Tasmania.

• Facilitated Digital Storytelling workshops 
with diverse groups including Western 
Chances, Breast Cancer Network 
Australia, Arts Access, Deaf Arts Network, 
reaching into a wide range of local 
communities and cultural groups.

• Participated in Eureka 50 by making 
Digital Stories with eight ‘youth 
ambassadors’ from around Victoria in 
collaboration with Department of Youth 
Services.

• Increased focus on indigenous content, 
partnering with Koorie Heritage Trust to 
work with community elders from 
metropolitan and regional Victoria to help 
young Koories make short films about 
culture and identity, and working with the 
Australia Council for the Arts to appoint an 
Indigenous Curatorial Intern.

Since joining ACMI in December 2004, I 
have enjoyed the opportunity to participate 
in many of these programs. The international 
reputation of ACMI is well deserved. ACMI 
celebrates the convergence of art, 
technology and popular culture of the 
moving image with a wide-ranging scope 
that no other Australian institution can 
match. Our unique program of exhibitions, 
cinema programs, talks, forums, education 

“There’s a shining light in  
the film culture landscape:  
the Australian Centre for the 
Moving Image…  
the adventurous programming 
and absolutely essential  
‘culture fix’...  
Has the potential to open  
doors and expand minds.”
The Age, 28 August 2005
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performance
Performance Report

Key Indicators   
For the year ended 30 June 2005 Target Actual
Onsite visitation 865,000 845,348
Online visitation 1,200,000 1,682,794
Lending collection audience (see note 1) 830,000 768,212  
    
Note 1: Until 1 July 2004, ACMI managed loans from the National Film and Video Lending Service on  
behalf of the National Library.

   
  
Financial performance results in brief 
For the year ended 30 June 2005  2005  2004
Government output funding 16,674,887 15,843,228
Generated revenue 2,658,942 2,974,517
Total Income 19,333,829 18,817,745
Less operating costs (see note 2) 18,600,196 18,038,405
Net operating surplus  733,633  779,340

Note 2:  Excludes depreciation (not included in output funding) and capital charge (funded separately)

programs, production workshops, 
community activities and lending services  
let visitors experience the richness of the 
world’s most popular forms of art and 
entertainment - from a century of cinema, to 
television, computer games and interactive 
media arts. Such scope would not be 
possible without the commitment of a wide 
range of partners – government, commercial, 
educational, and cultural. I thank them for 
their invaluable support.

The final half of the financial year has seen 
ACMI concentrate on visioning the way 
forward. ACMI is currently at a point of 
transition – between its initial establishment 
and its full-scale operation as a world-class 
cultural destination. We have identified a 
number of central issues which will be 
addressed in the coming year. These 
important developments will help unify the 
already popular individual elements of the 
ACMI offer into a major attraction.

• Development of new feature entry, 
improved layout and wayfinding within the 
building, plus bold theming and signage 
of internal spaces.

• Broadened special exhibitions program, 
events and active learning facilities 
spanning all forms of the moving image.

• Repositioned ACMI brand and sharpened 
communications messages.

These developments have commenced  
early in 2005-2006. Planning has also 
commenced for further new attractions to 
strengthen the ACMI offer, including the 
development of an innovative permanent 
exhibition telling the story of 100 years of the 
moving image, and a cultural resource 
centre providing improved access to our 
extraordinary collection at Federation 
Square. All this will broaden our appeal, 
making ACMI the place to experience the 
world of film, television and new media.

I am enormously excited about the journey 
ahead and taking ACMI into the next phase 
of its development. With the support of the 
State government, and drawing on the 
enormous passion and expertise of our 
board and staff, we have quickly identified 
the elements which will take ACMI from 
being an internationally-admired arts 
institution to a cultural and entertainment 
destination that all Victorians will regard as a 
treasured asset.

Tony Sweeney
Director/CEO

“I got vision,  
and the rest of  
the world wears 
bifocals.”
Butch Cassidy (Paul Newman),  
Butch Cassidy and the Sundance Kid
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highlights
2004: Cinema Program
Melbourne International Film Festival
Reeldance
Watching Privacy

September 04
10th Atari Diegesis Festival
2004: Australian Culture Now
Los Angeles: City of Mirrors
Reeldance

October 04
Melbourne International Arts Festival
Melbourne on Screen
SenseSurround
The Horror
X Media Lab

November 04
Japanese Film Festival
The Horror

December 04
Proof
Resfest

January 05
Midsumma Festival at ACMI
Proof
Proof Cinema Program

February 05
Director Focus: Nuri Bilge Ceylan
Melbourne Latin American Film Festival
Proof

March 05
Melbourne Queer Film Festival
Mirrorball
Seniors’ Film Festival
World of Women Film Festival
You talkin’ to me: Focus on Robert De 
Niro

April 05
Festival of German Films
Focus on Female Gothic
Intimate Transactions
Scoot
State of Play: Games with an Agenda
Top Screen

Program Highlights

Ongoing Programs
Screen Adventures
Screen Play
Screen It!
Lounge Critic
Digital Storytelling
Game Loading
Memory Grid
Popcorn Taxi Melbourne
Screen Play
Film Bubs
Kids’ Flicks
Masters of Documentary
Future Classics
Golden Shadows
Melbourne Filmoteca
Melbourne Cinematheque
Digital Cinema
Seniors’ Cinema
Freaky Fridays: Late Night Cult
Great Australian Cinema

July 04
2004: Australian Culture Now
2004: Cinema Program
Liquid Architecture
Melbourne International Film Festival
Open House 2004

August 04
10th Atari Diegesis Festival
2004: Australian Culture Now

World Without End
You talkin’ to me: Focus on Robert De 
Niro

May 05
Intimate Transactions
State of Play: Games with an Agenda
World Without End
Focus on Wong Kar-wai
Education Week at ACMI

June 05
State of Play: Games with an Agenda
Sonic The Hedgehog: Icon of Our 
Times
World Without End
Focus on Superheroes
Melbourne International Animation 
Festival
Melbourne International Children’s Film 
Festival
First Hand

The Year in Brief 
In 2004-05, the Australian Centre for the 
Moving Image continued to present 
innovative and imaginative programs, 
reaching a diverse range of local, national 
and international audiences. ACMI Cinemas 
showcased the finest cinema from around 
the world and hosted Victoria’s best film 
festivals. The world’s largest Screen Gallery 
at ACMI maintained its reputation as 
Australia’s premier destination for cutting-
edge media arts, hosting four major 
acclaimed international exhibitions. In 2004-
05, our public programs continued to reach 
into local communities, opening doors and 
expanding minds with programs such as 
Digital Storytelling, Screen It!, the first 
national moving image competition for 
primary school children and Games Lab, 
Australia’s only dedicated exhibition space 
for computer games. Monthly program 
highlights from 2004-05 follow:

“ Here’s looking  
at you, kid.”
Rick Blaine (Humphrey Bogart)  
Casablanca
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Cinema Programs
ACMI Cinemas are the place for movies 
that matter. Our superbly equipped 
cinemas have become the hub of film 
culture events in Victoria and provide a 
home for a wide range of activity including 
film festivals, retrospectives and thematic 
screenings, industry conferences and 
events, post-production testing and cast 
and crew screenings.

ACMI develops and delivers a world-class 
cinema program designed to inspire, 
educate and entertain diverse audiences. 
In 2004-2005, ACMI Cinemas screened 
597 feature films and 1007 short films from 
over 40 countries.

art
“Talking about 
dreams is like talking 
about movies.”
Frederico Fellini
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highlights
The Horror
29 Oct – 7 Nov 04
This focus season explored the relationship 
between Horror movies and contemporary 
social fears and anxieties, with a particular 
emphasis on 70’s classics that continue to 
influence current examples of the genre. 
Included a screening of American 
Nightmare and Q&A with director Adam 
Simon.

Resfest
3 Dec – 12 Dec 04
The world’s leading digital film festival, 
presented by ACMI in Melbourne at ACMI 
and in Sydney at The Studio, Sydney 
Opera House and Dendy Opera Quays. 
Featured a retrospective on Jonathan 
Glazer and the Australian premiere of Dig!

Proof Cinema Program
20 Jan – 1 Feb 05
Scandals, scare-tactics and spin were 
exposed in this eye-opening program 
presented to coincide with the major 
Screen Gallery exhibition. Included 
premiere screenings of Carmel Traver’s 
Truth Lies and Intelligence, Robert Kane 
Pappas’ Orwell Rolls in His Grave, Robert 
Greenwald’s Uncovered: the War in Iraq 
and Agnes Varda’s Cinevardaphoto.

Director Focus: Nuri Bilge Ceylan
11 – 20 Feb 05
A season dedicated to the award-winning 
and atmospheric films of the new master of 
Turkish cinema.

You talkin’ to me? 
Focus on Robert De Niro
24 Mar – 5 Apr 05
A season of De Niro classics, rarities and 
gems celebrating the 25th anniversary of 
Raging Bull.

Mirrorball 2005
5 Mar – 10 Mar 05
Highlights from Europe’s innovative music 
video festival presented in association with 
the Adelaide Film Festival.

Highlights

2004: Australian Culture Now
until 29 Aug 04
A screening and chat series focused on the 
visionary practice of six contemporary 
filmmakers embracing a variety of 
approaches and forms. Featured 
filmmakers: Cordelia Beresford, Richard 
Grant, Susan Kim, Catriona McKenzie, 
Cate Shortland, Ben Speth. 

Los Angeles: City of Mirrors
17 – 27 Sep 04
A focus season of Hollywood classics and 
rarely screened avant-garde films that took 
the city of Los Angeles as subject, 
character and background. Launched with 
the Melbourne premiere of Thom 
Andersen’s Los Angeles Plays Itself. 

Masters of Documentary
28 Oct 04 – 4 Jun 05
Bi-monthly series of screenings that 
focused on the work of acclaimed 
documentary makers including: Dennis 
O’Rourke, Nick Broomfield, Robert Drew, 
D.A Pennebaker, Werner Herzog, Les 
Blanks, Errol Morris, Kim Longinotto, Mira 
Nair, Jean Rouche and Trinh T Minh-ha. 
Launched with an Exclusive Preview 
screening of Dennis O’Rourke’s Land 
Mines – A Love Story.

Even more movies that matter
In late March 2005, ACMI launched an 
expanded cinema program designed to 
engage increased audiences from a variety 
of sectors of the Victorian community and to 
provide additional offers for visitors to 
Melbourne. ACMI delivered a diverse 
program with both popular appeal and 
curatorial integrity, by building on the 
strengths of the last two years’ programs 
through grouping and highlighting of  
several new major activity strands with 
increased regularity. 

ACMI Cinemas now presents a curated 
‘Focus On’ season every month – taking an 
in-depth and rigorous look at a particular 
actor, director, genre or theme. Our regular 
and ongoing weekly programs include 
Freaky Fridays: Late Night Cult (Friday 
nights), Seniors’ Cinema (Saturday mornings 
and Monday afternoons), Great Australian 
Cinema (Saturday afternoons), Kids Flicks 
(Sunday mornings, plus school holidays) and 
Film Bubs (Tuesday mornings). Our monthly 
Future Classics program presents 
impressive contemporary filmmaking from 
around the globe, and, showcasing the 
superb high-end projector at ACMI Cinemas, 
our monthly Digital Cinema film selections 
celebrate how digital technology has 
changed film production, restoration and 
presentation.

Melbourne’s home for film
Dedicated to creating a diverse and relevant 
film culture agenda, ACMI continues to 
develop and maintain strong partnerships 
with a wide range of stakeholders. From 
one-off festivals and niche events to regular, 
specialised programming, our range of 
festivals and partners enrich the cinema-
going experience for ACMI visitors.

In 2004-2005, our partners included: 
Melbourne International Film Festival, Golden 
Shadows, The Melbourne Cinémathèque, 
Melbourne Filmoteca, ReelDance: 
International Dance on Screen Festival, 
Watching Privacy, Melbourne International 
Arts Festival, Melbourne on Screen, 
Japanese Film Festival, Midsumma Festival, 
Latin American Film Festival, Melbourne 
Queer Film Festival, World of Women Film 
Festival, Festival of German Films, 
Melbourne International Comedy Festival, 
Little Big Shots: Melbourne International 
Children’s Film Festival and Melbourne 
International Animation Festival.

“I’ve seen 
things... seen 
things you little 
people wouldn’t 
believe...”
Roy Batty (Rutger Hauer)  
Blade Runner
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the new documentary by Jonathon Demme 
(Silence of the Lambs).

Digital Cinema
3 Apr 05 – ongoing (monthly)
Celebrating how digital technology has 
changed film production, restoration and 
presentation and showcasing the superb 
high-end projector at ACMI Cinemas. 
Launched with the Melbourne premiere of 
Tarnation and included new digital 
restoration of the Marx Brothers’ hilarous 
Duck Soup.

Great Australian Cinema
9 Apr 05 – ongoing (weekly)
Regular screenings of Australian classic 
works by acclaimed filmmakers Bruce 
Beresford, Gillian Armstrong, Paul Cox, 
George Miller, Phillip Noyce, Tracey Moffat, 
Fred Schepisi, Tim Burstall, Peter Weir and 
many more.

Film Bubs
12 Apr 05 – ongoing (weekly)
Quality movies for parents with infants, 
these special Tuesday morning sessions 
have a bit more light and noise in the 
cinema than usual.

Seniors’ Cinema
Ongoing (weekly)
An ongoing program of quality films for 
discerning senior audiences, launched with 
exclusive previews of A Good Woman.

Kids’ Flicks
School holidays and
3 Apr 05 – ongoing (weekly)
School holiday and weekly screening 
program to keep up-and-coming film buffs 
well entertained and inspired, with a slate 
of feature length films to cover all tastes 
and age groups, from G rated anime by 
Japan’s world famous Studio Ghibli to live 
action PG-rated recent releases and 
reissued classics for young teens.

Seniors’ Film Festival 2005  
15 Mar –18 Mar 05
A festival of fine films for discerning seniors 
presented in association with the 
Department of Victorian Communities.

Focus on Female Gothic
14 – 25 Apr 05
A season of horror, melodrama and noir 
films characterised by heroines who 
navigate paths of desire, repression and 
self-preservation. Co-curated by Adrian 
Martin (The Age) and featuring the 
Melbourne premiere of Jonathan Glazer’s 
Birth.

Focus on Wong Kar-wai
5 May – 16 May 05
The first major Wong Kar-wai retrospective 
in Australia, featuring the Melbourne and 
Sydney premieres of 2046. Supported by 
the Hong Kong Economic and Trade Office 
and presented in Sydney in association 
with Dendy Cinemas.

Focus on Superheroes
9 Jun – 14 Jun 05
A season of films, TV episodes and 
animations focussing on the enduring 
nature of these mythical icons. Presented 
in association with Cinema Studies 
Program, Melbourne University to coincide 
with a major academic conference on 
Superheroes.

Freaky Fridays: Late Night Cult
1 Apr 05 – ongoing  (weekly)
A weekly series featuring movies that are 
enigmatic, anti-establishment, quirky, 
outrageous and often so-bad-they’re-
good. Featuring Polanski’s The Fearless 
Vampire Killers (aka Pardon Me, But Your 
Teeth Are in My Neck) and Peter Jackson’s 
early cult classic Braindead.

Future Classics
8 Apr 05 – ongoing (monthly)
Showcasing impressive contemporary 
filmmaking from around the globe, 
launched with Sahiba Sumar’s award-
winning Silent Water and The Agronomist, 

Fostering the Australian film industry 
In addition to developing and delivering a 
wide range of industry-focused programs 
including Popcorn Taxi and Melbourne on 
Screen, ACMI Cinemas is the venue of 
choice for filmmakers. This year, 38 Cast 
and Crew screenings and 14 Post 
Production tests took place in our world-
class theatres. Industry highlights included: 
X Media Lab, an intensive 4 day conference 
and workshop environment for new media 
practitioners; the Sydney/Melbourne 
simultaneous Cast & Crew screening of  
Star Wars Episode III: Revenge of the Sith 
making full use of our High-Definition digital 
projector; and the Cast & Crew screening of 
John Safran Vs God. ACMI Cinemas are also 
used by premiere training and education 
institutions to showcase graduate work 
including the VCA School of Film and 
Television and the Australian Film Television 
and Radio School.

Expanding international networks
ACMI Cinemas programmers attended film 
festivals in Toronto, Hong Kong, Adelaide, 
Sydney and Brisbane sourcing the very best 
international and local content for Australian 
audiences. To bring together our world-
leading programs we have this year worked 
with a wide range of production and 
distribution companies and rights holders 
including: 20th Century Fox, Accent Film 
Entertainment, Andy Anderson, Anthology 
Film Archives, Arenafilm, Argos Films, 
Basement Pictures, Becker Entertainment, 
British Film Institute, Buena Vista 
International, Canonigo Films, Canyon 
Cinema, Cascade Films, Chapel Films, China 
Star, Cinema Libre, Cine-Tamaris, Columbia 
TriStar, Dendy Films, Dennis O’Rourke, 
Diane Mckenzie, Films de la Pleiade, Fischer 
Films, Flower Films, Fondazione Prada, 
Fortissimo Films, Funny Balloons, Gil Scrine 
Films, Hollywood Classics, Hopscotch Films, 
Hoyts Distribution, Icon Films, Jet Tone 
Productions, Kennedy Miller Productions, La 
Biennale di Venezia, Lafayette Film, Les Film 
du Losange, Level Four Films, Madman 
Cinema, Madman Entertainment, Magna 
Pacific, Margaret Fink Films, Mary Tower 
Drew Associates, MGM Classics, Mirabai 
Films, National Film and Sound Archive, New 
Zealand Film Commission, Pagan Films, 
Palace Films, Palm Beach Pictures, Potential 
Films, Purple Pictures, Rainbow Media, 
Regency Productions, Rialto Entertainment, 
Roadshow Films, Ronin Films, Runaway 
Films, Salt-Pan Films, Samson Productions, 
Samson Productions, Seven Network, 
Sharmill Films, Sony Picture Classics, Sony 
Pictures Releasing, South Australian Film 
Corporation, Southern Cross Films, Studio 

Canal, Trenchard Productions, Turner 
Studios, Umbrella Entertainment, United 
International Pictures, Universal Pictures, 
USC Motion Picture Archive, VCI 
Entertainment, Video Data Bank, Vixen 
Films, Warner Home Video, Werner Herzog 
Films, Wild Bunch, Women Make Movies, 
Yutaka Tsuchiya and Zen Films.
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Exhibition Programs
Presenting four major special exhibitions, 
along with a range of other innovative 
media arts initiatives, ACMI further 
cemented its position as Australia’s premier 
site for the display of media art in 2004-
2005. Now one of Australia’s most visited 
spaces for contemporary art, the Screen 
Gallery has become an internationally-
admired facility. We have planned our 
forward exhibition program for the next few 
years, and will begin to broaden the focus 
of the Screen Gallery to exhibitions that 
explore all forms of the moving image.

“The artist is the 
antenna of the race.”
Ezra Pound
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highlightsHighlights

2004: Australian Culture Now
until 12 Sep 04
This spectacular national survey of 
contemporary Australian practice across 
seven venues was a major first-time 
collaboration between ACMI and the 
National Gallery of Victoria. ACMI showed 
works by 64 artists and collectives, 
including 33 commissioned works – 
exemplifying our commitment to providing 
opportunities for practioners to create new 
and innovative content especially for ACMI’s 
unrivalled exhibition spaces.

SenseSurround 
7 Oct - 7 Nov 04
Featuring works in the Melbourne Festival, 
SenseSurround showcased exhilarating 
sensory environments by three renowned 
Australian and international media artists. 
David Pledger and Jeffrey Shaw 
collaborated to make Eavesdrop, an 
interactive narrative environment, and 
selection of important works by leading 
Australian digital media artist Jon 
McCormack was shown. Granular 
Synthesis, Ulf Langheinrich and Kurt 
Hentschlager premiered the first installed 
version of their world-renowned Modell 5. In 
an custom built space, extreme sub bass 
and volume played to an audience twice 
per night. 

Proof
9 Dec 04 - 13 Feb 05
As much an investigation as exhibition, 
Proof questioned how consensus is 
formed. The exhibition featured works by 
Andy Anderson (USA), Bureau of Inverse 
Technology, Stan Brakhage (USA), Paul 
Bush (UK), Critical Art Ensemble (USA), 
Jem Cohen (USA), Adam Donovan 
(Australia), Peter Fischli and David Weiss 
(Germany), Coco Fusco (USA), Ross 
Gibson (Australia), Johan Grimonprez 
(Belgium), John Hansen (Australia), Peter 
Hennessey (Australia), Institute for Applied 
Autonomy (USA), Nizar Jabour (Iraq/
Australia) , Miranda July (USA), Walid Raad 
(USA), Jeff Riley (Australia), Paul Rodgers, 
Jay Rosenblatt (USA), Sadia Sadia 
(Canada), Sarah Waterson (Australia) and 
Kate Richards (Australia).
“The most interesting and engaging show 
yet put on at ACMI” Art Monthly Australia

World Without End 
14 Apr 05 – 17 Jul 05
This elegant exhibition explored how our 
experience of the world is shaped by the 
poetics of time, place and natural 
phenomena, showcasing works by Darren 
Almond (UK), Christian Boustani (France), 
Robert Cahen (France), Simon Carroll and 
Martin Friedel (Australia), Seoungho Cho 
(South Korea), Ross Cooper and Jussi 
Angeslevä (UK/Finland), Daniel Crooks 
(Australia), Brian Doyle (USA), Luke Jerram 
(UK), Clare Langan (Ireland), Susan Norrie, 
Pleix (France), and Lynette Wallworth 
(Australia).
“An enjoyable exhibition providing many 
possible pathways to explore and possible 
worlds in which to lose yourself” Realtime

Collaboration, commissioning  
and research
Alongside our popular exhibition program, 
ACMI continued to actively pursue a range of 
innovative commissioning, collaboration and 
research opportunities. With collaboration 
increasingly central to art making, cross-
disciplinary approaches are at the heart 
of many of our exhibitions. Through our 
partnership with the Australasian CRC for 
Interaction Design (ACID), ACMI contributed 
to research projects at the forefront of 
international practice.

Our participation in the commemoration 
of the 150th anniversary of the Eight-Hour 
Day has seen ACMI work with Museum 
Victoria, Trades Hall, State Library of Victoria, 
Melbourne Workers Theatre, University of 
Melbourne and RMIT towards the 2006 
celebrations, during which ACMI will present 
a newly commissioned media artwork. We 
hosted a range of curatorial interns, including 
Australia Council for the Arts New Media  
Arts Curatorial Intern and Indigenous 
Curatorial Intern.

ACMI hosted the Australian premiere of 
Intimate Transactions, an interactive 
installation by Transmute, a Brisbane-based 
collective co-founded by Dr Keith Armstrong, 
hybrid media artist, Lisa O’Neill, 
choreographer/performer, and Guy Webster, 
musician/sound artist. Intimate Transactions 
enabled participants at the Block gallery at 
QUT to interact with participants at ACMI 
using an interface called a ‘Bodyshelf’. The 
project was developed in partnership with 
ACID, QUT Creative Industries Research and 
Applications Centre (CIRAC), the RMIT 

Spatial Information Architecture Lab, and  
the Australia Council for the Arts. The project 
featured as part of the Australian Innovation 
Festival. It has subsequently been nominated 
for a Prix Ars Electronica and will be 
presented there in September this coming 
year.

Setting the cultural agenda
ACMI curators continued their active 
involvement in the Australian and international 
contemporary arts, speaking and 
participating in media art festivals and related 
industry events. Major engagements include 
keynote addresses by ACMI curators at the 
Second Beijing International New Media Arts 
Exhibition and Symposium (China) and the 
Computing Arts Conference (Newcastle).

As well as touring a major exhibition to 
Brisbane, ACMI worked with Asialink to 
present, I thought I knew but I was wrong: 
New Video Art from Australia. This program 
toured to galleries throughout Asia, including 
the Chulalongkorn University Gallery, 
Bangkok, Beijing Millenium Monument, 
Beijing and the Ssmazie Space, Seoul. 
For the second time, ACMI was invited 
to showcase screen-based arts at the 
Melbourne Art Fair – the premiere exposition 
of contemporary visual art in the Asia Pacific 
region. The ACMI project room featured a 
selection of works by Queensland-based 
artist Tina Gonsalves.

“Life doesn’t 
imitate art, it 
imitates bad 
television.”
Woody Allen
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Touring Exhibition: Transfigure//Body
7 – 30 April 2005
Our acclaimed 2003-2004 exhibition 
Transfigure explored tensions between 
body, nature and technology. The 
exhibition generated considerable interest 
from interstate and international galleries. A 
component of Transfigure, became our first 
touring exhibition when it was presented as 
Transfigure//Body at The Block gallery, 
QUT Creative Industries Precinct, as the 
inaugural exhibition for Queensland’s 
newest media arts venue.



Public Programs
Public Programs at ACMI engage and 
inspire visitors of all ages to be cultural 
producers and creators as well as cultural 
consumers. Our unparalleled range of 
talks, forums, exhibitions and hands on 
production workshops give ACMI visitors 
the opportunity to absorb themselves in 
both the theory and the practice of the 
moving image in all its forms.

“Far more people  
have enjoyed Jane 
Austen’s work on 
television than will 
ever read her books.”
Hugh Mackay
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State of Play: Games with an Agenda
22 Mar – 8 Jun 05
Games Lab opened with an exploration of 
how games technology is being used by 
games designers and artists to influence 
and critique the politics of our world, 
exploring how games can make us think 
and sometimes act.

Sonic The Hedgehog: Icon of our Times
From Jun 22
With computer game characters now as 
identifiable as those from film and literature, 
Sonic The Hedgehog is not simply a 
household name - he is a contemporary 
icon. As well as tracking the development of 
this legendary character, Games Lab have 
tracked the development of game 
technology over the past decade.

Scoot
9 Apr 05
Scoot, a location-based game created by 
artist Deborah Polson employing the web 
and mobile devices as tools of play, was set 
in ACMI and Federation Square and in an 
online facsimile of both spaces. Players had 
to find clues in both the physical and online 
worlds to solve the games puzzles. The 
event was well attended with over 40 teams 
playing. Scoot was funded by QUT and 
ACID, and the Melbourne City Council and 
was supported by Federation Square 
Management and ArtPlay.

Red vs Blue 
22 Aug 04
Screenings of the hilarious ‘machinima’  
film using the Halo 3D computer games 
engine. 792 children and parents attended 
both sessions which were followed by  
Q&A with two of the Red vs Blue creators, 
Gus Sorola (Simmons) and Geoff Fink 
(Griff) from the Rooster Teeth team.

Channel V  - Band in the Bubble
31 Aug 04
Launch of the band in the bubble on the 
Square and the first live Channel V 
broadcast from the Screen Pit.  The 
Channel V show What U Want was 
delivered live from the Screen Pit on 
Saturday and Sunday over two weekends.

Lounge Critic
Ongoing
This year, ACMI continued its popular 
series of forums on current issues in 
television with programs on Angel, sport 
on television, hospital dramas, CSI, and the 
year’s biggest TV hit, Desperate 
Housewives.

Digital Storytelling: Telling Tales
People from Arts Day South, Saturday 
Morning Art Class and Deaf Arts Network 
participated in this workshop series.  The 
project which was produced in partnership 
with Arts Access and with funding from the 
Department of Human Services, Disability 
Services and consisted of 5 workshops in 
which the stories were told and produced 
by people with disabilities and who are 
disadvantaged.

Telling our stories
It is predominantly through the moving 
image that we learn about the world, 
understand our culture and the culture of 
others, and tell our stories. New and 
emerging technologies mean sharing stories 
through the multiple mediums of digital 
imagery, sound, text, voice, music, video 
and animation, is much more readily 
possible and accessible.

During the July 2004 Open House weekend, 
ACMI proved itself to be a true ‘place of the 
people’ as we opened our doors to over 
15,000 visitors. Victoria’s Favourite Things 
invited Victorians from all walks of life to tell 
us, on camera, about their favourite thing. 
This turned up everything from a Mallee root 
(chosen by Norma of Swan Hill, who came 
in period costume) to a single framed 
elephant hair (brought in by Kristie of 
Elwood).

In 2004-2005 ACMI has worked with the 
Department of Human Services, VicHealth, 
Arts Access, Disability Services, City of 
Melbourne, Breast Cancer Network 
Australia, Eureka 150, Belgium Street 
Neighborhood House among many, to 
deliver our internationally recognised Digital 
Storytelling workshops. Through these 
workshops ACMI facilitated the production 
of a growing collection of the memories and 
stories of the people of Victoria recorded 
and preserved for future generations.

Our successful interactive exhibition space 
the Memory Grid, expanded in 2004-05. 
There are now a suite of five Memory Grid 
pods dedicated to the exhibition of over 200 

student and community-produced short 
films. The space also hosted a range of 
special community features and events – a 
forum on independent filmmaking practices, 
a meet and greet with fireside chat for the 
tertiary education sector, and an awards 
ceremony for the winners of the Screen It! 
competition. The excellence of the Memory 
Grid was acknowledged through the receipt 
of an Arts Portfolio Leadership award for 
Leadership in Community.

“Games are  
nerd poetry.” 
Ernest Adams
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Digital Storytelling: Memories  
of Moomba
Memories of Moomba was one of the 
December Digital Storytelling workshops, 
conducted in partnership with the City of 
Melbourne and the Melbourne Moomba 
Waterfestival and sponsored by Tattersalls.  
The project aimed to celebrate Moomba’s 
50 year history and the content was 
screened on the Federation Square screen 
and in the Screen Pit on a loop during the 
Moomba weekend. It was also featured in 
the Memory Grid for the month of March.

Digital Storytelling: Eureka 150
Eureka 150 was produced in collaboration 
with the Department of Premier and 
Cabinet and was launched at ACMI with the 
Minister, Mary Delahunty in October. Eureka 
150 was a Digital Storytelling workshop and 
exhibition that shared stories from young 
people between the ages of 14 and 17 that 
were a part of the Eureka celebrations in 
2004.  A team of youth ambassadors took 
part in the celebrations and captured their 
thoughts and feelings on Eureka through a 
series of digital stories.

Digital Storytelling: Journeys with 
Breast Cancer
Delivered with the Breast Cancer Network 
Australia, Journeys with Breast Cancer 
captured the personal stories of people 
who have been affected by Breast Cancer. 
Storytellers from across Australia including 
sporting legend Raelene Boyle share their 

personal stories of courage and 
determination. These powerful stories 
examine the complexities of dealing with 
breast cancer.

Digital Storytelling: Recovering Hope 
The Recovering Hope project captured the 
personal stories of Vietnamese Australian 
women as a celebration of the 30th 
anniversary of the first wave of migration to 
Australia.  Sinking boats, pirates and 
transit camps were all part of the 
dangerous journey many people 
experienced when fleeing their homeland 
Vietnam for a new start in Australia. The 
project was delivered in partnership with 
VicHealth and Belgium Street 
Neighbourhood House.

Looking to the future
In March, ACMI launched Games Lab, a 
fantastic new space on the ground floor 
dedicated to the display and discussion of 
computer game culture. In just thirty years, 
computer games have become a truly 
massive cultural phenomenon. They are 
now one of the most powerful and popular 
forms of the moving image.

Games have surpassed cinema as the 
fastest growing and highest earning form of 
entertainment. Victoria is the hub of the 
booming Australian games industry, and in 
this space ACMI showcases the most 
interesting games and developments in 
game culture by local and international 
developers.

Games Lab positions ACMI as one of the 
first organisations to start a progressive and 
critical approach to the exhibition and 
discussion of games as a significant cultural 
phenomenon. For the opening of the space, 
ACMI brought internationally renowned 
games designer and theorist Gonzolo 
Frasca to Australia for the first time. Frasca 
presented a public talk about the nature of 
serious video games, discussing videogame 
rhetorics, advergaming and political games. 
An ACMI representative attended the 
International Games Developers Conference 
in San Francisco to research future 
programs.

Collecting the moving image 
Our collections are a central resource in 
developing and presenting exhibitions, 
cinema programs and public programs at 
ACMI. Building on a tradition begun in 1946 
by the State Film Centre, ACMI’s collection 
encompasses a diverse range of moving 
image work in all media, and is a major state 
asset. The ACMI Lending Collection is 
Australia’s largest public lending collection  
of video, 16mm film, CD-Rom and DVD. 
ACMI also holds over 1000 16mm and 
35mm feature films in the collection, 
including material formerly held by the 
Russian Embassy and the Chinese 
Consulate. In 2004–2005, ACMI has refined 
its lending services and planned towards 
improved access online and onsite at 
Federation Square.

28 PUBLIC PROGRAMS  

“The five hours  
I spent here 
weren’t nearly 
enough...” 
ACMI Customer Feedback

2004-2005 Activities

Digital Storytelling 
17 workshops (121 participants)

Screen Adventures 
62 workshops (1667 participants)

Games Programs 
11 programs (2227 participants)

Talks and Forums 
23 programs (2006 participants)



Learning Programs
A central focus for our Public Programs 
team is the delivery of unique learning 
programs that explore screen literacy. Our 
cutting-edge facilities offer inspirational 
educational opportunities designed to 
engage and motivate students from across 
the curriculum.

“Art teaches  
nothing, except the 
significance of life.”
Henry Miller
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10th Atari Diegesis Festival 
3 Sep – 8 Sep 04
Australia’s premier national student 
showcase of film, video, photography and 
digital media. Over 1300 students and 
teachers were challenged and educated 
through exhibitions, career forums, industry 
seminars, screenings programs, master 
classes and awards for excellence. 

Screen It!
Sep 04 – May 05
In 2004, ACMI launched the inaugural 
Screen It! Competition: the first national 
moving image competition for primary 
school students. Children were invited to 
create a short film, either animation or live 
action. The theme, ‘Pacific Explorer’ was 
central to each of the competition’s three 
category briefs. The competition received 
104 animated and live action short films 
from all over Australia. 48 finalist works 
were selected and screened at the World 
Stamp Expo, attracting 200,000+ visitors, 
and at ACMI in the Memory Grid in May 
2005.

Top Screen 
22 Mar – 12 May 05
Based on the success of the Top Screen 
program at ACMI in 2004, ACMI has 
worked closely with the Victorian 
Curriculum and Assessment Authority 
(VCAA) to expand and raise the profile of 

the event in 2005. Top Screen profiles the 
state’s best screen based art and moving 
image works created by year 12 VCE 
students from around Victoria. The 21 
screenings and exhibition of short films 
and interactive works allowed an audience 
made up of over 3000 students, their 
families, schools and the general 
community to celebrate the talents of these 
young artists, designers and filmmakers. In 
2005 VCE VET Multimedia students were 
also on display in the Memory Grid.

Education Week
16 – 20 May 05
A highlight of Education Week in 2005 was 
an inspirational Animation Master class 
with Adam Elliot that targeted Year 9 
students and teachers.

Children’s Week
25 – 29 Oct 04
Presented with the support of the 
Department of Education and Training, one 
of the most successful Children’s Week 
events involved a science and drama event 
creating exciting book to screen links with 
a Harry Potter focus.

Teaching the language of the  
moving image
The focus of our education programs is 
on screen literacy – the ability to read, 
understand, analyse, create and appreciate 
screen texts and the ways in which they 
make meaning. Curriculum-driven and 
operating at all educational levels, our 
screen education programs are conducted 
by experts in the fields of cinema, television, 
games and new media, and make use of the 
hands-on studio space at ACMI.

Screen Education runs television production 
programs for young people on Mondays 
and Wednesdays of the school term. May 
2005 saw the successful launch of Back to 
the Past, a new production workshop for 
year 3 and 4 students. This is an interactive 
television experience that invites students 
to go back in a time machine to recover 
lost histories of Melbourne. It features 
Bud Tingwell as Professor Oldendays and 
focuses on the loss of precious moving 
image history in a devastating fire at an 
archive.

Educating the educators
Education staff at ACMI contribute to the 
production and development of screen 
based education via publication (study 
guides, journal articles, catalogue essays), 
national and international conference 
presentations, and representation on 
educational advisory committees for a 
number of key government agencies, 
universities and associated media arts 
organisations. Through our education 
program for primary, secondary and tertiary 
students, as well as our much-admired 
teacher seminars, ACMI brings this 
expertise to the Victorian classroom.

2004-2005 Activities
Seminars, Screenings and Lectures 
256 programs (14,512 participants)

Production Workshops  
84 workshops (3011 participants)

Festivals  
27 sessions (4470 participants)

“ I feel so proud 
of myself. Now I 
have something to 
call my own, 
something I’ve 
done on my own.”
ACMI Student Feedback
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Our Audiences
An integral part of presenting an engaging 
suite of programs is building strong 
audiences who identify ACMI as a place 
they want to go. As part of planning for our 
future, 2004-2005 has seen significant 
attention given to improving the visitor 
experience and putting in place strategies 
to build a strong community of interest. 
This year, ACMI commenced research to 
better understand our audiences.

ACMI aims to represent and cater for 
diverse audiences, communities and 
stakeholders, representing a myriad of 
cultural backgrounds, including women, 
indigenous people and youth.

Thoughout 2004-2005, ACMI presented 
screenings, exhibitions and other events 
and programs, representing and mirroring 
Victoria’s culturally and linguistically diverse 
poulation and markets. During the year 
ACMI partnered, supported and enabled 
numerous selected community 
organisations to utilise its resources and 
facilities as a venue and hub for special 
events and festivals.

ACMI is focusing its attention on building 
audiences by refreshing and refocusing the 
look and feel of the ACMI brand, increasing 
the volume and effectiveness of our 
marketing outlets and continuously 
clarifying our communications messages. 
We continued our exceptional record in 
attracting positive media attention. In 2004-
2005, 1379 pieces about ACMI programs 
were secured in the print media and ACMI 
was featured over 200 times in broadcast 
outlets such as radio and television.

Making accessible rich interpretative 
information is central to the way we 
communicate with our audiences. This 
year, we have improved our core publishing 
outlet, our website, adjusting its structure 
and enriching its promotional and 
interpretative content. Planning towards a 
further improved website has commenced. 
In 2004-2005, ACMI launched the following 

“The length of a  
film should be  
directly related to  
the endurance of  
the human bladder.”
Alfred Hitchcock

printed publications, all distributed 
nationally through Unireps: Proof: The Act 
of Seeing With One’s Own Eyes (exhibition 
catalogue), Impossible Nature: The Art of 
Jon McCormack, World Without End 
(exhibition catalogue), I Thought I Knew 
But I Was Wrong (exhibition catalogue), 
Lounge Critic: The Couch Theorist’s 
Companion and Short Site: Recent 
Australian Short Film.
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“Why don’t you  
come up sometime 
and see me?”
Lady Lou (Mae West)  
She Done Him Wrong

Our Place
By focusing on improving the ACMI 
experience, we have worked hard in 2004-
2005 to improve the ways in which our 
visitors encounter our spaces. Our Visitor 
Services Team are responsible for our 
‘frontline’ customer interface, covering 
information, tours, reception and box office 
functions. This year, we have achieved 
greater flexibility and efficiency from this 
team by consolidating these previously split 
functions.

This year, we have made some small but 
significant changes to the configurations of 
our spaces to improve the visitor 
experience. Temporary signage has been 
installed to improve visitor wayfinding, and 
increased external branding of the building 
has been achieved through large-scale 
digital print murals extending across our 
Flinders Street perimeter. The visibility of 
the expanded Memory Grid was improved 
with the removal of a ground floor wall, and 
the Games Lab space was redesigned to 
enable flexible exhibition arrangements 
against a vibrant interior design. Office 
spaces were reconfigured to improve their 
use of space, and the Box Office was 
relocated from the ground floor to a 
location closer to ACMI Cinemas on  
Level 1, improving its visibility and access.
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“If you build it, he  
will come.”
The Voice (Lee Garlington)  
Field of Dreams
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Our Team
The programs offered at ACMI are made 
possible by a dedicated team of paid and 
voluntary staff. Our team is passionate and 
creative, and has worked hard to deliver 
excellence in all areas of the organisation - 
cultural content, marketing and 
communications, development and 
partnerships, commercial and operations, 
and planning and resources.

As ACMI has shifted direction in 2005, we 
have begun to realign our staffing structure 
with new organisational priorities. These 
changes have allowed ACMI to focus on 
delivery of exhibitions and programs at the 
Centre at Federation Square whilst 
continuing to provide lending services from 
its South Melbourne premises. There has 
been a decrease in core staff in a number 
of areas, the result of targeted separations 
as well as normal staff turnover.

The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image Enterprise Agreement 2004-2007 
was endorsed by staff and was certified in 
the Australian Industrial Relations 
Commission on 28 October 2004. The 
ACMI Consultative Committee, established 
under the current enterprise agreement, 
continued to meet throughout the period of 
this report. There were no days lost as a 
result of industrial disputes and there was 
one formal grievance lodged during the 
reporting period.

ACMI applies the Code of Conduct for the 
Victorian Public Sector to its staff. The 
Code provides guidance for addressing 
ethical issues such as conflict of interest. 
The implementation of the VPS Career 
Structure resulted in the introduction of a 
revised Performance Development and 
Progression System. As a learning 
organisation, ACMI encourages staff to 
broaden their skills and knowledge base 
through further study. A diverse range of 
training programs was offered to staff 
during the year. In total 12 programs were 
offered with a total attendance of 1093 
training hours.

The Occupational Health and Safety 
Committee has continued to meet regularly 
during the year and there has been on-
going training in CPR and Fire Warden 
duties. There was one new workcover 
claim and two days lost as a result of 
industrial accidents during the reporting 
period. The percentage of sick leave days 
taken versus ordinary hours increased 
from  0.017% to 0.020% during the 
reporting period.

The ACMI Employee Assistance Program, 
which provides a range of options to meet 
the diverse needs of employees in the 
various stages of their professional and 
personal lives and is available to all 
employees, continued throughout the year. 
ACMI has in place policies aimed at 
avoiding all forms of discrimination and 
harassment in the workplace. ACMI 
employs people from a diverse range of 
cultural and linguistic backgrounds, with 
women comprising 54% of its workforce.

Over the past year over 190 volunteers 
have contributed to the ACMI volunteer 
program. There are at present 140 active 
volunteers. Over the year volunteers have 
contributed a total of 9652 hours. 
Volunteers participated in front of house 
and behind the scenes capacities in most 
areas of the organisation. Areas of special 
contribution included the Collections 
volunteers reaching a ten-year milestone 
for both volunteering and continuity of the 
16mm Film Project. In November 2004 the 
16mm Film Project volunteer team was 
awarded a Volunteer Certificate of 
Appreciation as part of the Arts Victoria, 
Arts Portfolio Leadership Awards.



> Exhibitions 
> Public Programs 
> Film Programs 
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> Marketing 
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FILM ACT

The Film Act 2001 established the Australian 
Centre for the Moving Image (ACMI) to 
feature and exhibit film, television and 
multimedia programs and to promote public 
education in relation to screen content and 
culture. The functions of ACMI are stated in 
section 23 of the Film Act:

a) to promote and exhibit, whether in Victoria 
or elsewhere, the moving image to the 
public or to any sector of the public;

b) to develop, control, manage, operate and 
promote ACMI and any facilities under the 
control of ACMI;

c)  to promote, whether in Victoria or 
elsewhere, ACMI as a national centre for 
the creation and exhibition of the moving 
image and promotion of events or 
activities including festivals, conferences, 
publications or exhibitions, where film or 
other screen-based programs are made, 
seen or discussed;

d)  to establish, maintain, conserve, develop, 
promote and exhibit, whether in Victoria or 
elsewhere, the collection of moving 
images;

e)  to make, whether in Victoria or elsewhere, 
any item from the collection of moving 
images available for study or loan to 
persons or institutions, subject to any 
conditions that ACMI determines;

f)  to promote, whether in Victoria or 
elsewhere, public education and 
discussion with reference to the moving 
image;

g) to develop and create, whether in Victoria 
or elsewhere, exhibitions of the moving 
image;

h) to develop and create, whether in Victoria 
or elsewhere, materials for educational or 
other programs conducted by ACMI;

i)  to conduct, whether in Victoria or 
elsewhere, research and development in 
relation to the moving image;

j)  to develop relationships or enter into 
partnerships with other organisations, 
including government bodies, whether in 
Victoria or elsewhere, to promote public 
education in relation to the moving image.

Section 24 of the Act outlines ACMI’s 
powers:

1. ACMI has power to do all things 
necessary or convenient to be done for or in 
connection with, or as incidental to, the 
performance of its functions.

2. Without limiting sub-section 1, ACMI may, 
in connection with the performance of its 
functions:

a) enter into contracts, agreements or 
arrangements with any person or body 
and do everything, including the payment 
of money, that is necessary or expedient 
for carrying the contracts, agreements or 
arrangements into effect;

b) subject to this Act, acquire, hold and 
dispose of real or personal property;

c) be a member of a body corporate, 
association, partnership, trust or other 
body;

d) form, or participate in the formation of, a 
body corporate, association, partnership, 
trust or other body;

e) enter into a joint venture with another 
person or other persons;

f) do all things necessary or convenient to 
be done for, or in connection with, a joint 
venture in the performance of its 
functions;

g) accept gifts, grants, bequests and devises 
made to it and act as trustee of money or 
other property vested in it on trust;

h) provide consultancy and project 
management services;

i) acquire, or enter into agreements or 
arrangements with respect to the 
acquisition of, the copyright, or an interest 
in the copyright, in any film, television or 
multimedia program;

j) make available for public use items from 
the collection of moving images.

In performing its functions and exercising its 
powers, ACMI is subject to the direction and 
control of the Minister. During the period of 
this report, the responsible Minister was 
Mary Delahunty, Minister for the Arts.
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since there have been no investigations 
and

j) The Ombudsman has not made any 
recommendation under the Act that 
relates to the Australian Centre for the 
Moving Image

Disclosures of improper information or 
detrimental action by the Australian Centre 
for the Moving Image or its employees may 
be made to the Protected Disclosure 
Officers or the Ombudsman

Protected Disclosure Co-ordinator
Rupert Burns
Telephone: (03) 9651 0037
Email: rupert.burns@dpc.vic.gov.au

Protected Disclosure Officers
Janet Riley
Telephone: (03) 8663 2269
Email: Janet.Riley@acmi.net.au

Gael McIndoe
Telephone: (03) 8663 2425
Email: Gael.McIndoe@acmi.net.au

Correspondence to:
Australian Centre for the Moving Image
PO Box 14 Flinders Lane Victoria 8009

All correspondence, phone calls and emails 
from internal or external whistleblowers will 
be referred to the protected disclosure co-
ordinator.

Where a person is contemplating making a 
disclosure and is concerned about 
approaching the protected disclosure co-
ordinator or a protected disclosure officer in 
the workplace, he or she can call the 
relevant officer and request a meeting in a 
discreet location away from the workplace.

A disclosure about improper conduct or 
detrimental action by the Australian Centre 
for the Moving Image or its employees, may 
also be made directly to the Ombudsman:

The Ombudsman Victoria
Level 3, 459 Collins Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000 (DX 210174)
Internet: www.ombudsman.vic.gov.au

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTING 
REQUIREMENTS

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

Contact
Principal Officer:  
Tony Sweeney (Chief Executive Officer)

Freedom of Information Officer:  
Janet Riley

Access to information under the Freedom 
of Information Act 1982 may be made in 
writing to the Freedom of Information Officer,
Australian Centre for the Moving Image
PO Box 14, Flinders Lane  Vic  8009.
Telephone: (03) 8663 2269
Fax: (03) 8663 2276

This section of the report contains 
information that is required to be published 
annually under Part II of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982 (FoI Act). Further 
information on FoI can be obtained from the 
FoI Act, the various regulations made under 
that Act and www.foi.vic.gov.au.

Freedom of Information (FoI Services)
The Australian Centre for the Moving Image 
(ACMI) met its responsibilities for 
implementing the Government’s Freedom 
of Information policy. Requests for document 
under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 
(FoI Act) commonly related to ACMI 
programs and services. There were no 
requests for personal documents.

ACMI received and actioned 9 requests 
during 2004-05.

Making a Request

The FoI Act gives members of the public the 
right to apply for access to information in 
documentary form held by ACMI.

Documents that are maintained in the 
possession of ACM include:

• Internal working papers of ACMI

• Correspondence from ministers and 
members of Parliament, government 

departments and agencies, members of 
the public and the private sector

• Records relating to accounts

• Personnel and salary records

• Organisation and accommodation 
records.

Requests for Access to Documents
Access to documents (as defined in section 
5 of the FoI Act) may only be obtained 
through a request in writing (under section 
17 of the FoI Act) addressed to ACMI’s FoI 
Officer.

Applications should be as specific as 
possible to enable the FoI Officer to identify 
relevant documents as quickly and efficiently 
as possible. A $20.50 FoI application fee 
should accompany each request. From 1 
July 2005 this fee will be increased to 
$21.00. The application fee may be waived in 
cases where payment would cause an 
applicant financial hardship. When an 
applicant seeks a waiver of this fee, the 
request should indicate the grounds on 
which a waiver is being sought (for example, 
low income).

Assistance in determining the categories of 
documents relevant to a request can be 
provided by the FoI Officer. It should be 
noted that certain documents are destroyed 
or transferred to the Public Records Office in 
accordance with the Public Records Act 
1973.

An applicant may request photocopies of 
documents and/or inspect specific 
documents at ACMI by arrangement, or by 
other access arrangements as may be 
appropriate to the application.

Section 21 of the Act requires that all 
reasonable steps be taken to enable an 
applicant to be notified of a decision 
concerning the release of documents as 
soon as practicable. It must be no later than 
45 days after the day on which the request is 
received by ACMI.
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What information is released?
ACMI can refuse to release a document if it 
contains information that is exempt under 
the FoI Act. Documents can be exempt in full 
or exempt parts can be deleted with the 
remainder of the document released. ACMI 
will notify the applicant of his or her appeal 
rights if access is denied to a document or 
to part of a document.

The FoI Act outlines general categories of 
information that are exempt. This includes 
information relating to the personal affairs of 
third parties, information provided in 
confidence, information that if released might 
endanger the lives or physical safety of 
individuals, Cabinet documents, 
commercial-in-confidence information, 
internal working documents the release of 
which would be contrary to the public 
interest.

Decisions are made under FoI Act by the 
Chief Executive Officer or in line with 
sections 26 and 51 of the FoI Act.

Charges Under the Freedom of 
Information Act

Section 22 of the Act outlines the principles 
for the levy or waiver of charges required to 
be paid by an applicant to ACMI, before 
access to a document is given. Charges are:

• Photocopy fee - $0.20 per A4 page

• Search fee - $20 per hour or part thereof

• Supervision fee - $5 per 15 minutes or 
part thereof (where a document is 
inspected by an applicant)

• Deposits – a deposit of $25 may be 
required if the calculated charge does not 
exceed $100 or a deposit of 50 per cent 
of the calculated charge, where that 
charge exceeds $100.

Some charges may be waived in certain 
circumstances. An example might be where 
the applicant is impecunious and the request 
concerns access to a document relating to 
his or her personal affairs.

WHISTLEBLOWERS PROTECTION 
ACT 2001
This section of the report contains 
information that is required to be published 
annually under section 104 of the 
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 (‘the 
Act’).

a) The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image has adopted the procedures for 
handling disclosures required to be 
established under s.68 of the Act of the 
Department of Premier and Cabinet which 
can be found at www.dpc.vic.gov.au

b) The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image has received no disclosures during 
the year

c) The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image has not referred any disclosures to 
the Ombudsman for determination as to 
whether they are public interest 
disclosures during the year

d) The Ombudsman has not referred any 
disclosed matters to the Australian Centre 
for the Moving Image during the year

e) The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image has not referred any disclosed 
matters to the Ombudsman to investigate 
during the year

f) The Ombudsman has not taken over any 
investigation of disclosed matters from the 
Australian Centre for the Moving Image 
during the year

g) The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image has made no request under section 
74 of the Act to the Ombudsman to 
investigate disclosed matters during the 
year

h) The Australian Centre for the Moving 
Image has not declined to investigate a 
disclosed matter during the year

i) There have been no disclosed matters 
that were substantiated on investigation. 
There has been no action required to be 
undertaken arising from an investigation, 

Email:ombudvic@ombudsman.vic.gov.au
Telephone: (03) 9613 6222
Toll Free: 1800 806 314
Ombudsman: Dr George Brouwer

National Competition Policy
ACMI is committed to competitive neutrality 
principles, which are taken into account in all 
activities.

Consultancies
During the reporting period ACMI entered 
into 3 consultancies each costing less than 
$100,000 (excluding GST). The total cost of 
these consultancies was $66,625. ACMI 
continued a consultancy arrangement with 
PIVod Technologies for the design and 
implementation of the media platform during 
the reporting period. Additional payments of 
$232,540 were made to PIVod Technologies 
and there is no further commitment. There 
were no consultancy agreements entered 
into during the reporting period for amounts 
greater than $100,000 (excluding GST).

In 2003/04 ACMI incorrectly reported that it 
entered into 49 consultancies totalling 
$697,609. The actual number of 
consultancies entered into in 2003/04 were 
4 at a total cost of $19,245 as per the FRD 
22 definition of a consultant.

Building Act
ACMI does not own land or buildings and 
thus has no responsibilities under the 
Building Act 1993.

Disclosure of major contracts
ACMI did not enter into any contracts greater 
than $10 million in 2004-2005.

Other Information
Details on the following matters are available 
upon request, subject to the provisions of 
the Freedom of Information Act 1982: shares 
held, publications, pricing, fees and charges, 
major external reviews, research and 
development activities, overseas visits, major 
promotional, public relations and marketing 
activities, and the establishment, purpose 
and operations of committees.



Declaration of Pecuniary Interests 
All relevant staff completed declarations of interest applicable to 2004-05.

Public Administration Act 2004
In accordance with Section 8 of the Public Administration Act 2004, ACMI has established 
employment processes that will ensure that: 

• Employment decisions are based on merit

• Employees are treated fairly and reasonably

• Equal employment opportunity is provided and

• Employees have a reasonable avenue of redress against unfair or unreasonable treatment

Workforce Data

 at 30 June 2004 at 30 June 2005
 Male Female Total Male Female Total
Executive 3 1 4 1 0 1
On going 60 67 127 48 61 109
Fixed term 8 8 16 9 11 20
Casual 8 17 25 18 16 34
Total Persons 79 93 172 76 88 164
Total (Full Time Equivalent) 65.31 66.93 132.24 58.39 61.49 119.88

Executive Level Staff and Executive Level Vacancies

 at 30 June 2004 at 30 June 2005

Executive level employees 4 1
Vacancies - 1
Total 4 2

Board Membership  
Terry Cutler, President
Dion Appel
Annette Blonski
Peter Doughty
Tracey Ellery
Alan Finney OAM
Stephen Found
Carolyn Kirby
Natalie Miller OAM
Dan Pearce
Tony Phillips

Audit Comittee Members
Peter Doughty (Chair)
Annette Blonski
Dan Pearce

Executive
Tony Sweeney
Chief Executive Officer
(from 5 December 2004)
 
Tony Chamberlain
Acting Chief Executive Officer
(23 August to 5 December 2004)

Shane Hewitt 
Acting Chief Executive Officer
(26 March to 31 July 2004)
 
John Smithies
Special Projects
(to 31 July 2004)

Victoria Lynn
Director, Creative Development                 
(to 13 August 2004)
 
Tony Batt
Director, Operations
(to 24 December 2004)
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Legislation Requirement Page reference

Ministerial Directions (continued)

Financial Statements  
  
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA  
SD 4.2(b) Statement of financial performance 51
SD 4.2(b) Statement of financial position 52
SD 4.2(b) A statement of cash flows during the year 53
SD 4.2(b) Notes to the financial statements 54-75
SD 4.2(c) Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards 54, 73-74 
 and other authoritative pronouncements 
SD 4.2(c) Compliance with Ministerial Directions 41
SD 4.2(c) Accountable officer's declaration 48
SD 4.2(d) Rounding of amounts 56
SD 4.2(e) Recommended by the responsible body 48
SD 4.2(f) Model financial report  51-53
  
Other disclosures in notes to the financial statements  
FRD 9 Departmental disclosure of administered assets and liabilities 58-68, 71-75
FRD 18 Present value measurement of assets and liabilities 55
FRD 21 Responsible person and executive officer disclosures 68-70
FRD 23 Superannuation liabilities and disclosure 55
 
Legislation  
  
Film Act 2001   41  
Freedom of Information Act 1982  42
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001  43  

DISCLOSURE INDEX  
The Annual Report of the Australian Centre for the Moving Image is prepared in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 1994 and the Directions of the Minister for Finance.  This index has been prepared to facilitate 
identification of compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.  
  
  

Legislation Requirement Page reference

Ministerial Directions

Report of Operations  
  
Charter and purpose  
FRD 22 Manner of establishment and relevant Minister 41
FRD 22 Objectives, functions, powers and duties 41
FRD 22 Nature and range of services provided 41
  
Management and structure  
FRD 22 Organisational structure 40
  
Financial and other information  
FRD 22 Statement of workforce data and application of employment  45
 and conduct principles 
FRD 22 Summary of financial results for the year 11
FRD 22 Significant changes in financial position during the year 58, 60
FRD 22 Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives 11
FRD 22 Subsequent events 72
FRD 22 Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982 42
FRD 22 Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993 43
FRD 22 Statement on National Competition Policy 43
FRD 22 Application and operation of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 43
FRD 22 Details of consultancies over $100,000 43
FRD 22 Details of consultancies under $100,000 43
FRD 12 Disclosure of major contracts 43
FRD 22 Statement of availability of other information 43
FRD 22 Occupational Health and Safety 39
FRD 15 Executive office disclosures 44
FRD 10 Disclosure index 46
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Sadiq Mohammad
Financial Controller

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We certify that the attached financial 
statements for the Australian Centre for the 
Moving Image have been prepared in 
accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of 
the Financial Management Act 1994, 
applicable Financial Reporting Directions, 
Australian accounting standards and other 
mandatory professional reporting 
requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the 
information set out in the statement of 
financial performance, statement of financial 
position, statement of cash flows and notes 
to and forming part of the financial 
statements, presents fairly the financial 
transactions during the year ended 30 June 
2005 and financial position of the entity as at 
30 June 2005.

We are not aware of any circumstance, 
which would render any particulars included 
in the financial statements to be misleading 
or inaccurate.

Peter Doughty
Board Member

Antony Sweeney
Director/CEO
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005
 
 Notes 30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES   
Victorian Government Grants  18,488,052 17,791,762
Interest  278,037 349,033
Sales  51,784 269,739
Sponsorship  321,142 402,651
Other Income  2,007,979 1,953,094
TOTAL REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 2 21,146,994 20,766,279

    
EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES   
Employee Benefi ts  (8,907,745) (9,644,582)
Rental Expense on Operating Leases 3(b) (2,426,685) (2,409,446)
Operating Costs  (7,196,583) (5,797,839)
Cost of Goods for Resale  (69,183) (186,538)
Capital Asset Charge  (1,113,165) (1,416,534)
Depreciation & Amortisation of Non-Current Assets 3(a) (5,332,485) (5,390,438)
TOTAL EXPENSES  (25,045,846) (24,845,377) 

Result from Ordinary Activities  (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 
  
NET RESULT FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD  (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 
   

Net Increase in Asset Revaluation Reserve 12(c) - - 
  
TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY OTHER THAN THOSE RESULTING    
FROM TRANSACTIONS WITH VICTORIAN STATE GOVERNMENT  
IN ITS CAPACITY AS OWNER ON BEHALF OF THE CROWN    12(d) (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 

The above statement of fi nancial performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.   

Please note that this statement refl ects all gains and losses for the reporting period, recognised and displayed in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Directions of the Minister for Finance, irrespective of the amounts and timing of cash fl ows which are set out on Page 53. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005     

 Notes 30 June 2005 30 June 2004 
  $ $ 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

RECEIPTS   
Government Funding  17,374,887 16,451,279 
Interest Received  278,037 349,033 
Memberships & Venue Hire  557,138 374,913 
GST Received  675,520 900,266 
Operations  1,507,166 2,472,805 
  20,392,748 20,548,296
 
PAYMENTS    
Salaries and Associated Costs  (8,611,486) (10,278,795) 
Operations  (9,429,706) (10,551,544) 
  (18,041,192) (20,830,339) 
    
Net Cash Flows provided by/(used in) Operating Activities 14(b) 2,351,556 (282,043) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

PAYMENTS    
Payments for Property Plant & Equipment and Collection acquisitions  (1,295,966) (2,895,759) 

Net Cash Flows used in Investment Activities  (1,295,966) (2,895,759) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held  1,055,590 (3,177,802) 
Cash at the beginning of the year  3,933,002 7,110,804 
Cash at the end of the year 14(a) 4,988,592 3,933,002 

The above statement of cash fl ows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
    
 Notes 30 June 2005 30 June 2004 
  $ $ 
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash Assets 4 4,988,592 3,933,002
Receivables 5 397,928 402,120 
Inventories 6 - 72,194 
Other 7 - 16,327 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  5,386,520 4,423,643 
    
NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
Property, Plant and Equipment 8 12,104,577 16,342,784 
Collections 9 10,698,746 10,705,745 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  22,803,323 27,048,529 
    
TOTAL ASSETS  28,189,843 31,472,172 

CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Payables 10 1,423,264 1,103,001 
Provisions 11(a) 364,568 322,730 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  1,787,832 1,425,731 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Provisions 11(b) 363,425 109,003 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  363,425 109,003 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  2,151,257 1,534,734 

NET ASSETS  26,038,586 29,937,438 

EQUITY
Contributed Capital 12(a) 28,241,185 28,241,185 
Accumulated Losses 12(b) (6,531,199) (2,632,347) 
Asset Revaluation Reserve 12(c) 4,328,600 4,328,600 
TOTAL EQUITY  26,038,586 29,937,438  

The above statement of fi nancial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Collections

(i) Lending Collection 
The Lending Collection is brought to account at historical cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.  ACMI depreciates the 
Lending Collection in recognition that these assets are in continual public use and have limited useful lives.

  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
Class of Fixed Asset  Depreciation Rate Depreciation Rate
Lending Collection  20.00% 20.00%

(ii) Film Collection
This collection was valued during the 2003 reporting period by an independent valuer, John Turner, Registered Valuer under the Federal 
Government's Cultural Gifts Scheme.

The value of this collection was based on its estimated replacement value. Periodic, formal revaluations of the Collection will be undertaken at 
intervals not greater than three years. 

Given the unique nature of the Film Collection, depreciation is not recognised as the service potential of these cultural assets cannot be 
estimated reliably. As such, the valuation of the Film Collection is deemed to be valued at fair value at the reporting date. The Film Collection is 
due to be revalued in June 2006.

(iii) Exhibition Collection
This collection is made up of digital video tapes of the moving image that ACMI has obtained rights to display on site. This collection has been 
brought to account based on an internally developed valuation methodology, which was  developed in consultation with Graeme Addicott 
(FAPI, MPIA) of the Australian Valuation Offi ce in May 2003.

Given the unique nature of the Exhibition Collection, depreciation is not recognised as the service potential of these cultural assets cannot be 
estimated reliably. As such, the valuation of the Exhibition Collection is deemed to be valued at fair value at the reporting date. This collection 
will be revalued in June 2006.

(e) Leases
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefi ts of ownership remain with the lessor, are charged as 
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

(f) Employee Benefi ts
(i) Salaries and Wages
Liabilities for salaries and wages are recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in respect of 
employees' services up to that date.

(ii) Annual Leave and Long Service Leave
Provision has been made in the fi nancial statements for benefi ts accruing to employees in relation to Annual Leave and Long Service Leave.  

Employee benefi ts expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. Liabilities are determined after taking into consideration estimated future increases in wages and salaries and past experience 
regarding staff departures.

Employee benefi ts payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outfl ows to be made 
for those entitlements. Related on-costs (i.e. Superannuation Guarantee Charge and Payroll Tax) were calculated at 14.25% and have been 
included in the determination of these liabilities.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
This general purpose fi nancial report has been prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, 
Australian Accounting Standards, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board and Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views.

It is prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain assets and liabilities which, as noted are at valuation. The 
accounting policies adopted, and the classifi cation and presentation of items, are consistent with those of the previous year, except where 
a change is required to comply with an Australian Accounting Standard or Urgent Issues Group Consensus View (UIG), or an alternative 
accounting policy permitted by an Australian Accounting Standard adopted to improve the relevance and reliability of the  fi nancial report. 
Where practicable, comparative amounts are presented and classifi ed on a basis consistent with the current year.

(a) Reporting entity
ACMI was established under the Film Act 2001 with the objectives to promote, educate, and exhibit the moving image in all its forms.

(b) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.  Cost is based on the fi rst-in fi rst-out principle, and includes expenditure in 
acquiring the inventory. 

(c) Property Plant and Equipment
Subsequent to the initial recognition as assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at fair value. Plant 
and equipment are measured at cost. 

Revaluations are made suffi ciently often to ensure that the carrying amount of each asset does not differ materially from its fair value at the 
reporting date. Valuations are assessed annually and supplemented by independent assessments, at least every three years. Revaluations are 
conducted in accordance with the Victorian Government's Policy - Revaluation of Non-Current Physical Assets.

Revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses revaluation 
decrement in respect of that class of asset previously recognised as an expense in the net result, the increment is recognised immediately as 
revenue in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that a credit balance exists in the 
asset revaluation reserve in respect of the same class of assets, they are debited directly to the asset revaluation reserve.

Revaluation increments and decrements are offset against one another within a class of non-current assets.

(i) Amortisation 
The cost of improvements to leasehold properties is amortised over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
improvement to ACMI whichever is shorter.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease. Leasehold improvements held at the reporting date are being amortised 
over 10 years.

(ii) Depreciation 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the assets' expected useful lives, from the time they are held ready for use.  
The depreciation rates used for each class of assets are:
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
Class of Fixed Asset  Depreciation Rate Depreciation Rate
Audio Visual Equipment  25.00% 25.00%
Computers  33.33% 33.33%
Furniture and Fittings  20.00% 20.00%
Offi ce Equipment  20.00% 20.00%
Software  40.00% 40.00%
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 2:  REVENUE    

REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT    
State Output Funding - Department of Premier and Cabinet  16,674,887 15,843,228 
State - Depreciation Equivalent  700,000 532,000 
State - Capital Asset Charge  1,113,165 1,416,534 
  18,488,052 17,791,762 

SELF GENERATED REVENUE   
Interest from Financial Institutions  278,037 349,033 
Memberships  184,939 217,509 
Venue Hire  433,383 162,627 
Programming - Screenings, Lectures & Events  617,086 651,532 
ACMI Shop  51,784 242,417 
Lounge Bar  - 27,323 
Library Collection Management  - 202,332 
Sponsorship Income  321,142 402,651 
Other Income  772,571 719,093 
  2,658,942 2,974,517 
   
TOTAL REVENUE  21,146,994 20,766,279 
      
   

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g)  Contributed Capital
Consistent with UIG Abstract 38 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities appropriations for additions to net 
assets have been designated as Contributed Capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions have also been 
designated as Contributed Capital.

(h)  Superannuation
All superannuation contributions are recognised as expenses in the Statement of Financial Performance. A total of $620,486 was contributed 
to a number of superannuation funds during the reporting period.

(i) Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on an accrual basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the fi nancial assets. Government grants 
are recognised when they are received. Operations and other income is recognised when services are delivered.

(j) Receivables
All debtors are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement at no more than 30 days from the date of recognition. 
The recoverability of unpaid debts is assessed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for 
doubtful debts is raised when some doubt as to the collections exists.

(k) Capital Asset Charge
The capital asset charge is imposed by the Department of Treasury and Finance and represents the opportunity cost of capital invested in the 
non-current physical assets used in the provision of outputs. The charge is calculated on the carrying amount of non-current physical assets 
(excluding cultural assets).

(l) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable, in which case it is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or part of an item of expense. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, 
the Australian Taxation Offi ce (ATO) is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position. The GST component 
of a receipt or payment is recognised on a gross basis in the Statement of Cash Flows in accordance with Accounting Standard AAS 28 
Statement of Cash Flows.

(m) Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to ACMI prior to the end of the fi nancial year and which are unpaid. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid  within 30 days of recognition.

(n) Resources provided and received free of charge or for nominal consideration
Contributions of resources and resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value. Contributions 
in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if not 
donated.

(o) Rounding amounts
Amounts in the fi nancial report have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 5:  RECEIVABLES   

CURRENT:   
Trade Debtors  232,822 335,454 
Less Provision for Doubtful Debts  (18,397) (48,664) 
  214,425 286,790 
   
Prepayments  12,377 - 
GST Receivable  159,008 110,737 
Interest Receivable  12,118 4,593 
  397,928 402,120 
   
NOTE 6:  INVENTORIES   
   
CURRENT:   
ACMI Shop Stock on Hand  - 65,793 
ACMI Lounge Bar Stock on Hand  - 1,287 
Publications on Hand  - 5,114 
  - 72,194 

NOTE 6(a)  
ACMI closed the gift shop in September 2004, as such there is no inventory on hand as at the 30 June 2005.   
    
   
NOTE 7:  OTHER ASSETS   
   
CURRENT:   
Other Receivables  - 16,327 
  - 16,327 
      

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 3: RESULT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES     
Result from ordinary activities includes the following specifi c net gains and expenses:   
   
(a) DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS   

DEPRECIATION   
Audio Visual Equipment  (1,710,797) (1,649,458) 
Computer Equipment  (2,289,350) (2,309,071) 
Offi ce Equipment  (62,833) (57,380) 
Furniture and Fittings  (41,648) (44,631) 
Software  (138,973) (72,448) 
Lending Collection  (48,596) (199,587) 

TOTAL DEPRECIATION  (4,292,197) (4,332,575) 
    
AMORTISATION    
Leasehold Improvements  (1,040,288) (1,057,863) 

TOTAL AMORTISATION  (1,040,288) (1,057,863) 
   
TOTAL DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION  (5,332,485) (5,390,438)
   
(b) RENTAL EXPENSE ON OPERATING LEASE   
Minimum lease payments  (2,417,765) (2,360,885) 
Equipment Rental  (8,920) (48,561) 

TOTAL RENTAL EXPENSE  (2,426,685) (2,409,446) 
   
(c) OTHER ASSET RELATED EXPENSES   
(i) Loss on Disposal of Property Plant & Equipment for the reporting period total $2,573;   
(ii) A downward movement in Provision for Doubtful Debts for the reporting period  of $30,687; and   
(iii) Write off of Leasehold Improvements for the reporting period of $206,114.    
   
NOTE 4:  CASH ASSETS   
   
Cash on Hand  4,000 5,460 
Cash at Bank  996,358 930,029 
ACMI Gift Fund 4(a) 9,929 9,423 
Money Market Instruments  3,978,305 2,988,090 
  4,988,592 3,933,002 
   
NOTE 4(a): ACMI Gift Fund   
A portion of the money held in the ACMI Gift Fund is restricted to acquisitions for the documentary section of the Lending Collection, under 
the theme "fostering community".
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  (continued)

Reconciliations
Movements in the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current fi nancial year are 
set out below. 
 
2005 Audio Visual  Computer Furniture Offi ce Leasehold Software 
 Equipment Equipment & Fittings  Equipment Improvements  Total 
Carrying 
amount at 
start of year 3,877,372 3,240,773 138,959 183,028 8,723,579 179,073 16,342,784
Additions 352,579 513,737 12,000 9,895 169,043 197,115 1,254,369 
Disposals  -  (1,712)  -  (861) (206,114)  -  (208,687)
Depreciation/
amortisation 
expense (1,710,797) (2,289,350) (41,648) (62,833) (1,040,288) (138,973) (5,283,889)
Carrying
amount at 
end of year 2,519,154 1,463,448 109,311 129,229 7,646,220 237,215 12,104,577

2004 Audio Visual  Computer Furniture Offi ce Leasehold Software
 Equipment Equipment & Fittings  Equipment Improvements  Total 
Carrying 
amount at 
start of year 5,368,692 4,787,403 121,617 88,521 8,405,599 132,385 18,904,217
Additions 162,621 768,234 61,973 152,390 1,375,843 119,136 2,640,197
Disposals (4,483) (5,793)  -  (503)  -   -  (10,779)
Depreciation/
amortisation 
expense (1,649,458) (2,309,071) (44,631) (57,380) (1,057,863) (72,448) (5,190,851) 
Carrying
amount at 
end of year 3,877,372 3,240,773 138,959 183,028 8,723,579 179,073 16,342,784 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 8:  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT   
   
AUDIO VISUAL EQUIPMENT   
At Cost  7,699,128 7,346,549 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (5,179,974) (3,469,177) 
  2,519,154 3,877,372 
   
COMPUTER EQUIPMENT   
At Cost  7,945,118 7,433,141 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (6,481,670) (4,192,368) 
  1,463,448 3,240,773 
   
FURNITURE AND FITTINGS   
At Cost  256,344 244,344 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (147,033) (105,385) 
  109,311 138,959 
   
OFFICE EQUIPMENT   
At Cost  359,825 350,853 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (230,596) (167,825) 
  129,229 183,028 
   
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS   
At Cost 8(a) 10,635,169 10,735,382 
Less Accumulated Amortisation  (2,988,949) (2,011,803) 
  7,646,220 8,723,579 

SOFTWARE    
At Cost  513,863 316,748 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (276,648) (137,675) 
  237,215 179,073 
   
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  12,104,577 16,342,784 
   
NOTE: 8(a)   
ACMI wrote off leasehold improvements totalling $206,114 during the reporting period which related to dismantling the fi t out of retail shop 
and exhibition enclosures in the screen gallery.
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 10:  PAYABLES   
   
Trade Creditors  849,245 493,024 
Sundry Creditors  29,027 156,863 
Unearned Revenue  23,020 41,927 
Accrued Expenses  501,538 332,191 
Customer Deposits  20,434 78,996 
  1,423,264 1,103,001 
   
NOTE 11:  PROVISIONS   
   
(a) CURRENT   
Employee Benefi ts (Note 19)  364,568 322,730
 
(b) NON-CURRENT    
Employee Benefi ts (Note 19)  363,425 109,003 
Total Provision  727,993 431,733 

NOTE 12:  EQUITY AND MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY   
   
(a)  CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL   
Balance 1 July  28,241,185 28,241,185 
Capital contribution during the year by Victorian State Government  - - 
Balance 30 June   28,241,185 28,241,185 
   
(b) ACCUMULATED LOSSES   
Accumulated losses at the beginning of the fi nancial year  (2,632,347) 1,446,751 
Net result for the reporting period 12(d) (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 
Accumulated losses at the end of the fi nancial year  (6,531,199) (2,632,347) 
   
(c) ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE   
Balance 1 July  4,328,600 4,328,600 
Revaluation increment of Film Collection during the year  - - 
Balance 30 June  4,328,600 4,328,600 
     
(d) TOTAL MOVEMENT IN EQUITY   
Net Result for the Reporting Period  (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 
Asset Revaluation Reserve  - - 
Balance 30 June  (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 
   

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 9:  COLLECTIONS   
   
FILM COLLECTION   
At Fair Value (2003 Independent Valuation)  8,828,600 8,828,600 
   
LENDING COLLECTION   
At Cost  997,920 997,921 
Less Accumulated Depreciation  (996,246) (947,651) 
  1,674 50,270 
   
EXHIBITION COLLECTION   
At Fair Value   1,868,472 1,826,875 
   
TOTAL COLLECTIONS  10,698,746 10,705,745 
   
Reconciliations
Movements in the carrying amounts of each class of Collections at the beginning and end of the current fi nancial year are set out below. 
 
2005 Lending Film Exhibition 
 Collection Collection Collection Total 
Carrying amount at 
start of year 50,270 8,828,600 1,826,875 10,705,745
Additions  -   -  41,597 41,597 
Disposals -   -   -  -
Depreciation/amortisation 
expense (48,596)  -   -  (48,596)
Carrying amount at 
end of year 1,674 8,828,600 1,868,472 10,698,746

2004 Lending Film Exhibition 
 Collection Collection Collection Total 
Carrying amount at 
start of year 224,285 8,828,600 1,582,640 10,635,525
Additions 25,572  -  244,235 269,807
Disposals -   -   -  -
Depreciation/amortisation 
expense (199,587)  -   -  (199,587) 
Carrying amount at 
end of year 50,270 8,828,600 1,826,875 10,705,745 
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 14:  NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS   
   
(a) RECONCILIATION OF CASH   
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and in the banks, at call deposits and investments in money 
market instruments, with less than 90 days to mature. Cash at the end of the fi nancial year, as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows, is 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:   
   
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $ 

Cash on Hand  4,000 5,460 
Cash at Bank  996,358 930,029 
ACMI Gift Fund  9,929 9,423 
Money Market Instruments  3,978,305 2,988,090 
  4,988,592 3,933,002 
   

(b) RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:  
   
NET RESULT FOR THE REPORTING PERIOD  (3,898,852) (4,079,098) 
   
Add (Less) Non-Cash Flows in Operating Surplus:   
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment & Lending Collection  4,292,197 4,332,575 
Amortisation of Leasehold Improvements  1,040,288 1,057,863 
Write-off of Property, Plant and Equipment  208,687 (3,467) 
   
CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES   
(Increase) / Decrease in Receivables  16,569 319,109 
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  72,194 43,178 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets  3,950 (11,487) 
Increase / (Decrease) in Payables  320,263 (1,512,785) 
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions  296,260 (437,931) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non-Current Assets  - 10,000 

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES  2,351,556 (282,043) 
   
   
   

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004
  $ $
NOTE 13:  COMMITMENTS    
The balance of ACMI's commitments which were not expended in this fi nancial year amounted to $18,954,229 (2004: $20,831,055). These 
commitments become payable when contracts are executed and upon contractors satisfying certain conditions.   
   
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS   
Not later than one year  225,294 652,970 
Later than one year but not later than fi ve years  - 96,383 
Later than fi ve years  - - 
  225,294 749,353 
   
OPERATING LEASE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 13(a)  
Not later than one year  3,360,354 3,088,666 
Later than one year but not later than fi ve years  12,420,434 12,283,483 
Later than fi ve years  2,948,147 4,709,553 
  18,728,935 20,081,702 
   
TOTAL COMMITMENTS  18,954,229 20,831,055 
   
NOTE 13(a) OPERATING LEASE AND OTHER COMMITMENTS   
ACMI's ability to meet these future contractual commitments depends on future Parliamentary appropriations. These commitments 
predominately relate to leasing premises across three sites:  Federation Square Flinders Street Melbourne, 196 Flinders Street Melbourne and 
222 Park Street South Melbourne.
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 15:  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial Instruments  At the Floating Non-Interest Total carrying amount  
  Interest Bearing as per Statement of  
  Rate  Financial Position  
   30 June 2004 30 June 2004 
30 June 2004  
(i)  Financial Assets    
Cash  939,452 5,460 944,912  
Receivables  - 397,527 397,527  
Investments  2,988,090 4,593 2,992,683  
Total Financial assets  3,927,542 407,580 4,335,122  
   
(ii)  Financial Liabilities   
Creditors  - 691,814 691,814  
Total Financial liabilities  - 691,814 691,814  
     
   
(c) NET FAIR VALUES
Unless otherwise stated, each class of fi nancial asset and fi nancial liability is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as net fair 
value. The aggregate net fair value of fi nancial assets  and  fi nancial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance date, are as 
follows:   
   
 Total carrying amount and aggregate   Total carrying amount and aggregate    
 net fair value as recognised in the  net fair value as recognised in the   
 Statement of Financial Position  Statement of Financial Position   
 30 June 2005  30 June 2004  
(i)  Financial Assets    
Cash 1,010,287 944,912 
Receivables 373,433 397,527 
Investments 3,990,423 2,992,683 
Total Financial Assets 5,374,143 4,335,122 
   
(ii)  Financial Liabilities   
Creditors  901,291 691,814 
Total Financial Liabilities 901,291 691,814 
  
   

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 15:  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   
   
(a) TERMS, CONDITIONS AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES   
ACMI's accounting policies including the terms and conditions of each class of fi nancial asset and fi nancial liability, both recognised and 
unrecognised at balance date, are as follows:   
   
Recognised Statement  Accounting Policies  Terms and Conditions   
Financial of Financial        
Instrument Position Notes      

(i) Financial Assets    
Cash 4   Cash is stated at net fair value.  The interest rate achieved on cash holdings   
      varied between 5.12% and 5.56%. 

Investments 4   Short term money market investments   Invested at varying interest rates    
    at call are stated at net fair value.  between 5.15% and 5.60% during the    
      reporting period.  
      
Receivables 5   Receivables are carried at nominal   Settlement terms are 30 days.   
    amounts due, less any provision .       
    for doubtful debts.  A provision for      
    doubtful debts is recognised      
    when some doubt as to the       
    recoverability exists.   
   
(ii) Financial Liabilities    
Creditors  10   Liabilities are recognised for amounts  Trade liabilities are normally settled    
    to be paid in the future, for goods and  on 30 day terms.   
    services received prior to year end.    
   
(b)  INTEREST RATE RISK   
ACMI's exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interest rate risks of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities, both recognised and 
unrecognised at reporting date are as follows:   
   
Financial Instruments  At the Floating Non-Interest Total carrying amount   
  Interest Rate Bearing as per Statement of    
    Financial Position   
  30 June 2005 30 June 2005 30 June 2005 
    
(i) Financial Assets   
Cash 1,006,287 4,000 1,010,287 
Receivables - 373,433 373,433 
Investments 3,978,305 12,118 3,990,423 
Total Financial Assets 4,984,592 389,551 5,374,143 
   
(ii)  Financial Liabilities   
Creditors -  901,291 901,291 
Total Financial Liabilities - 901,291 901,291 
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 16:  RELATED PARTIES (continued)   
    
OTHER RESPONSIBLE PERSONS     
Mr Shane Hewitt (Acting Chief Executive Offi cer) - for the period 1 July 2004 to 31 July 2004    
Mr Tony Chamberlain (Acting Chief Executive Offi cer) - for the period 23 August 2004 to 5 December 2004    
Mr Antony Sweeney (Chief Executive Offi cer) - appointed 6 December 2004   

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS   
Transactions during the fi nancial year with Responsible Persons and Responsible Person-related Entities are as follows:  
   
PAYMENTS TO RELATED PARTIES   
  30 June 2005  30 June 2004 
Entity Transaction details  $  $ 

Australasian CRC for Interaction Design In-kind support   174,550   -
(Terry Cutler)     
Buena Vista International Film hire  2,368    4,393   
(Alan Finney)      
Bytecraft Entertainment Pty Ltd Electrical supplies  2,277    16,376   
(Stephen Found)     
Holding Redlich Legal fees 143,368  36,114  
(Dan Pearce)     
Lifelounge Pty Ltd Event development  -  15,069 
(Dion Appel)     
Melbourne International Film Festival Tickets & promotional items -  7,337  
(Dan Pearce)     
Sharmill Films Film hire  1,795  - 
(Natalie Miller)  Film Hire & licence fees -  3,938 
     
   
PAYMENTS FROM RELATED PARTIES    
   30 June 2005  30 June 2004 
Entity Transaction details  $  $ 
   
Australasian CRC for Interaction Design Purchase of tickets & in-kind support 176,200  - 
(Terry Cutler) Project fees  -  4,538 
George Patterson Partners Venue hire  -  1,045 
(Tony Phillips)      
Buena Vista International  Purchase of festival tickets  220  -  
(Alan Finney) Venue hire  -  4,895 
Melbourne International Film Festival Venue hire  165  15,770  
(Dan Pearce)   
Lifelounge Pty Ltd Venue hire  1,320  -  
(Dion Appel)   
    
The above transactions with related parties were carried on under normal commercial terms with full disclosure of any confl icts of interest 
following due process.   
   

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 15:  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities: 
   
RECOGNISED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS   

Cash and Investments: The carrying amount approximates fair value because of their short term maturity.  
Receivables and Payables: The carrying amount approximates fair value.   
     
(d)  CREDIT RISK EXPOSURES   
The Board's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised fi nancial asset is the carrying amount of 
those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.   

Credit risk associated with trade receivables is managed as follows:   
- By advancing credit under payment terms of 30 days; and      
- Debt collection policies and procedures.   
   
(e) CREDIT CARD FACILITY   
ACMI uses Westpac Visa Card facilities.      
Amount of Facility $200,000      
Currency: AUD      
Amount of Facility unused as at 30 June 2005 was $200,000.   
    
NOTE 16:  RELATED PARTIES   
   
RESPONSIBLE PERSONS   
During the reporting period there were a maximum of twelve Responsible Persons. In accordance with government policy no members of 
ACMI's governing board were remunerated during the reporting period. The names of Responsible Persons at any time during the reporting 
period are as follows:   
   
Minister for Arts    
The Honourable Mary Delahunty MLA   
   
Governing Board     
Dr Terry Cutler (President)  Ms Natalie Miller OAM    
Mr Peter Doughty Mr Dion Appel     
Mr Stephen Found Mr Tony Phillips     
Mr Alan Finney OAM Ms Tracey Ellery     
Ms Annette Blonski Ms Carolyn Kirby     
Mr Dan Pearce      
     
Resignations     
There were no resignations from the governing body for the reporting period ending 30 June 2005.  
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 18:   REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS   
  30 June 2005 30 June 2004  
  $ $ 
The Offi ce of the Auditor-General of Victoria audits the      
fi nancial statements of ACMI.  
Amounts received or due and receivable by the Auditor for:         
  -  Auditing the accounts   23,430   22,770  
   
NOTE 19:   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS   
Provision for employee benefi ts     
   
Current (Note 11)   
Annual Leave  324,187 310,618 
Long Service Leave  40,381 12,112 
  364,568 322,730 
Non-current (Note 11)   
Long Service Leave 19(a) 363,425 109,003 
Total Employee Benefi ts  727,993 431,733 
   

NOTE 19 (a):   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS   
The increase in Long Service Leave from the previous fi nancial year is due to a change in ACMI's Enterprise Agreement (EBA) 2004-2007 
for entitlements to Long Service Leave.   Commencing In this reporting period, employees can now access pro-rata Long Service Leave 
entitlements after 7 years of service, whereas previously entitlements were not payable until after 10 years of service.  
   

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 16:  RELATED PARTIES (continued)   

REMUNERATION OF RESPONSIBLE PERSONS   
The total remuneration and benefi ts received, or due and receivable for the three responsible persons during the reporting period was in the 
range: $190,000-$199,999   (2003-2004: $150,000-$159,999)   
   
Income Band  Total Remuneration of Responsible Persons  
   2004-5 2003-4 
    No. No. 
$10,000 - $19,999    1 - 
$60,000 - $69,999    1 - 
$120,000 - $129,999    1 - 
$150,999 - $159,999    - 1 
Total numbers    3 1 
    
The remuneration of the Minister is reported separately in the fi nancial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.   
   
NOTE 17:   REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES   
The numbers or executive offi cers, other than Ministers and Accountable offi cers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are 
shown in the fi rst two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive offi cers is shown in the 
third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments and retirement benefi ts.   
    
For this reporting period, of two executive offi cers listed below, one resigned in July 2004 and the other was made redundant. This has had a 
signifi cant impact on total remuneration fi gures due to the inclusion of annual leave, long-service leave and termination payments.  

Income Band Total Remuneration  Base Remuneration
 2004-5 2003-4  2004-5  2003-4 
 No. No.  No.   No. 
$100,000 - $109,999 - 3  -   2   
$130,000 - $139,999 - 1   -   -   
Total numbers - 4   -   2  
          
Total amount - 452,757  -   211,834  
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 21: THE IMPACT OF ADOPTING AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (AASB) EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (IASB) STANDARDS 
Following the adoption of Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (A-IFRS), ACMI will report for the fi rst time 
in compliance with A-IFRS when results for the fi nancial year ended 30 June 2006 are released. It should be noted that under A-IFRS, 
there are requirements that apply specifi cally to not-for profi t entities that are not consistent with International Financial Reporting Standard 
requirements.

ACMI was established to achieve the objectives of government in providing services free of charge or at prices signifi cantly below their 
cost of production for the collective consumption by the community, which is incompatible with generating profi t as a principal objective. 
Consequently, where appropriate ACMI applies those paragraphs in accounting standards applicable to not-for-profi t entities.

An A-IFRS compliant fi nancial report will comprise of a new Statement of Changes in Equity in addition to the three existing fi nancial 
statements, which will all be renamed. The Statement of Financial Performance will be renamed as the Operating Statement, the Statement 
of Financial Position will revert to its previous title as the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows will be simplifi ed as the Cash Flow 
Statement. However, for the purpose of disclosing the impact of adopting A-IFRS in the 2004-2005 fi nancial report, which is prepared under 
existing accounting standards, existing titles and terminologies are retained.

With certain exceptions, an entity that has adopted A-IFRS must record transactions that are reported in the fi nancial report as though A-IFRS 
had always applied. This requirement also extends to any comparative information included within the fi nancial report. Most accounting policy 
adjustments to apply A-IFRS retrospectively will be made against Accumulated Funds (Losses) at the 1 July 2004 opening balance sheet date 
for the comparative period. The exceptions include deferral until 1 July 2005 of the application and adjustments for:

AASB 132 Financial Instruments : Disclosure and Presentation; and 
AASB 139 Financial Instruments : Recognition and Measurement

The comparative information for transactions affected by these standards will be accounted for in accordance with existing accounting 
standards.

ACMI has taken the following steps in managing the transition to A-IFRS and has achieved the following scheduled milestones:

(a) Established a A-IFRS project team to review the new accounting standards to identify key issues and the likely impacts resulting from the 
adoption of A-IFRS and any relevant Financial Reporting Directions as issued by the Minister for Finance;   

(b) Participated in an education and training process to raise awareness of the changes in reporting requirements and the processes to be 
undertaken; and

(c) The transition to and implementation of the A-IFRS is overseen by ACMI's Audit Committee.

This fi nancial report has been prepared in accordance with current Australian accounting standards and other fi nancial reporting requirements 
(Australian GAAP).

A number of differences between Australian GAAP and A-IFRS have been identifi ed as potentially having an impact on ACMI's fi nancial 
position, however, it is important to note that all disclosures regarding the adoption of A-IFRS are ACMI's best estimate of signifi cant impacts of 
the changes as at the date of preparing the 30 June 2005 fi nancial report. The actual effects of transition to A-IFRS may differ from due to :

(a) changes in facts and circumstances;

(b) ongoing work being undertaken by the A-IFRS project team;

(c) potential amendments to A-IFRS and Interpretations; and

(d) emerging accepted practice in the interpretation and application of A-IFRS and UIG Interpretations.

Following the completion of ACMI's business impact analysis and evaluation of policy alternatives, ACMI has concluded that the signifi cant 
areas of impact in adopting A-IFRS are as follows:

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 19 (b):   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS   
Government Employees' Superannuation Fund   
No liability is recognised in the Statement of Financial Position for ACMI's share of the State's unfunded superannuation liability.  The State's 
unfunded superannuation liability has been refl ected in the fi nancial statements of the Department of Treasury and Finance. 
   
Superannuation Contributions   
Superannuation contributions for the reporting period are included as part of salaries and associated costs in the Statement of Financial 
Performance of ACMI.  Contributions for the Year represent cash contributed, whereas Contributions Outstanding at Year End represent 
contributions unpaid.  
   
The names and details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by ACMI are as follows: 
   
 Contribution  Contribution  Contribution Contribution   
 for the year for the year outstanding outstanding   
   at year end at year end
Name of Superannuation Fund 30 June 2005 30 June 2004 30 June 2005 30 June 2004  
 $ $ $ $ 
AMP Superleader Plan 9,101 25,260 - - 
Government Superannuation Fund 21,605 41,596 - -  
Superannuation Trust of Australia 31,205 26,152 - - 
Victorian Superannuation Fund 468,293 566,545 - - 
Various other 90,282 37,470 - -  
Total 620,486 697,023 - -  
   
   
With the exception of Government Superannuation Fund(GSO), all contributions to these funds are the statutory 9% contribution. 
Contributions to GSO are determined by that fund.   
 
NOTE 20 : EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE
On 17 August 2005, ACMI entered into an agreement to repurchase a lease and associated equipment from a sub-tenant.  The term of this 
agreement consisted of a settlement component, which is substantially covered by ACMI insurers, and the acquisition of Plant and Equipment 
associated with the leased space.  The fi nancial effect of the agreement has not been refl ected in the fi nancial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2005.
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AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 21: THE IMPACT OF ADOPTING AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (AASB) EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (IASB) STANDARDS (continued) 
An asset meets the identifi ably criterion in the defi nition of an intangible asset under AASB138, when it is:

(a) separable, that is capable of being separated or divided from the entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged either 
individually or together with a related contract, asset or liability; or

(b) arises from contractual or other legal rights, regardless of whether those rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from other 
rights and obligations.

As at reporting date ending 30 June 2005, two components of ACMI's Property Plant and Equipment assets; the Exhibition Collection and 
Software, meet the defi nition of an intangible asset under AASB138. As such, these assets which are currently classifi ed under Australian 
GAAP as Property Plant and Equipment will be reclassifi ed as Intangible Assets on adoption of AASB138.

ACMI estimates that there will be no material impact in adopting A-IFRS on its statement of fi nancial performance and fi nancial position.
The following table outlines the estimated impact on the fi nancial position of ACMI following the adoption of A-IFRS:   
  

Reconciliation of total assets & total liabilities as presented under Australian GAAP and under A-IFRS: Notes  30 June 2005 
Total assets under Australian GAAP 4-9 28,189,843 
Estimated A-IFRS impact on assets 
Property, Plant and Equipment 8 (237,215) 
Collections 9 (1,868,472) 
Intangible Assets 21(d) 2,105,687 
Total estimated A-IFRS impact on assets  - 
Total assets under A-IFRS  28,189,843 
   
Total liabilities under Australian GAAP 10-11 2,151,257 
Estimated A-IFRS impact on liabilities 21(c) - 
Total Estimated A-IFRS impact on liabilities  - 
Total liabilities under A-IFRS  2,151,257 

AS AT 30 JUNE 2005     
   
NOTE 21: THE IMPACT OF ADOPTING AUSTRALIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (AASB) EQUIVALENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (IASB) STANDARDS (continued) 
(a) Impairment of Assets
AASB 136 Impairment of Assets requires assets to be assessed for indicators of impairment each year. This standard applies to all assets, 
other than inventories, fi nancial assets and assets arising from construction contracts, regardless of whether they are measured on a cost or 
fair value basis. If indicators of impairment exist, the carrying value of an asset will need to be tested to ensure that the carrying value does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its value-in-use and fair value less costs to sell.

A signifi cant portion of ACMI's assets are cultural assets; in particular the Film Collection and digital moving image collection, known as the 
Exhibition Collection. Both these collections are recognised at fair value and have not been depreciated due to the diffi culty in determining the 
service potential and useful lives for this particular type of cultural asset. Both these collections were revalued in June 2003 and are due to 
be revalued in June 2006. Consequently,  ACMI is unable to accurately assess the impact of adopting AASB 138 Impairment of Assets on its 
Film and Exhibition Collections, given both these collections will need to be revalued in 2005-2006 and is therefore unable to estimate the 
impact of adopting this standard on all its assets.

(b) Property Plant & Equipment
When an asset is initially recognised, AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment requires the capitalisation of costs of dismantling and removing 
an asset and restoring the site on which the asset was created, together with the recognition of a provision at present value in accordance 
with AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. These costs (and related provisions) are not recognised under 
Australian GAAP and ACMI currently expenses such costs if they are incurred. As a consequence, there will be an increase in depreciation 
expense as a result of the increase in the carrying amounts of assets and also an interest expense will be incurred as the present value 
discount on the dismantling provision unwinds.

The different accounting treatment required under AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment compared with the current accounting treatment 
under Australian GAAP, raises a complex accounting issue for ACMI in relation to its Leasehold Improvements at the Federation Square site.

ACMI's lease on the Federation Square site is due to expire in 2012 and it includes further options in the lease to extend the term after the 
fi rst 10 years. Given that it is highly probable that ACMI will take up the option of extending lease at the Federation Square site given the 
iconic status of this building and its suitability for ACMI's activities, a meaningfully estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing and restoring 
the Federation Square site it occupies at this time in adopting the new standards is unable to be accurately quantifi ed.

(c) Employee Benefi ts
Under existing Australian accounting standards, employee benefi ts such as salaries and wages, annual leave and sick leave are required to 
be measured at their nominal amounts regardless of whether they are expected to be settled within 12 months of reporting date. On adoption 
of A-IFRS, a distinction is made between short-term and long-term employee benefi ts and AASB 119 Employee Benefi ts require liabilities for 
short-term employee benefi ts to be measured at nominal amounts and liabilities for long-term employee benefi ts to be measure at present 
value. AASB 119 defi nes short-term employee benefi ts as benefi ts that fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in 
which the employees render the related service.  Therefore, liabilities for employee benefi ts such as salaries and wages, annual leave and sick 
leave are required to be measured at present value where they are not expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date.

Employee benefi ts which do not fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the related services is rendered such 
as Long Service Leave, continues to be measured at their present value. A Provision for Annual Leave classifi ed as a long-term employee 
benefi ts from the application of AASB 119 has been assessed and deemed to be immaterial.

(d) Intangible Assets
AASB138 Intangible Assets defi nes an intangible asset as an identifi able non-monetary asset without physical substance, which is not an 
Intangible Asset that is within the scope of another accounting standard or a fi nancial asset as defi ned in AASB139 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition & Measurement.

74 AUSTRALIAN CENTRE FOR THE MOVING IMAGE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS   NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUSTRALIAN CENTRE FOR THE MOVING IMAGE 75



Images 

Cover Raging Bull from Focus on Robert de Niro (Thu 24 Mar - Tue 5 Apr), Courtesy Chapel Distribution 
Page 02 2046 from Focus on Wong Kar-Wai (Thu 5 May - Mon 16 May), Courtesy Hopscotch 
Page 04  Christian Boustani, A Viagem (The Voyage) from World Without End (Thu 14 Apr - Sun 17 Jul) 
Page 06   ACMI Board, Photo: Mark Farrelly 
Page 08  Brian Doyle, The Light from World Without End (Thu 14 Apr - Sun 17 Jul) 
Page 10   Seoungho Cho, Rev from World Without End (Thu 14 Apr - Sun 17 Jul) 
Page 12  2046 from Focus on Wong Kar-Wai (Thu 5 May - Mon 16 May), Courtesy Hopscotch 
Page 14   A Good Woman from Seniors’ Cinema, Courtesy Hopscotch 
Page 16  Focus on the Djarn Djarns from Little Big Shots (Tue 16 Jun - Sun 19 Jun), Courtesy RB Films Pty Ltd 
Page 18   Birth from Focus on Female Gothic (Thu 14 Apr - Mon 25 Apr), Courtesy Roadshow Film Distributors 
Page 20  Sadia Sadia, The Memory of Water from Proof (Thu 9 Dec - Sun 13 Feb) 
Page 22  Brian Doyle, The Light from World Without End (Thu 14 Apr - Sun 17 Jul) 
Page 24  Desperate Housewives from Lounge Critic (Thu 5 May) 
Page 26  September 12 from State of Play: Games with an Agenda (Tue 22 Mar - Wed 8 Jun) 
Page 29  Digital Storytelling: Memories of Moomba (Tue 1 Mar - Wed 31 Mar)
Page 30   Rachel Lewis, Charlie from Diegesis 2003
Page 32 Screen Adventures, Photo: Peter Lambropoulos 
Page 34 ACMI Cinemas, Photo: David McLeod 
Page 36  acmipark from Games Lab, Courtesy selectparks 
Page 38 Chicken Run from Kids’ Flicks, Courtesy United International Pictures 

76 AUSTRALIAN CENTRE FOR THE MOVING IMAGE




